JUNIPER NETWORKS INC

Form 10-Q	
November 08, 2012	

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 **FORM 10-0**

	11110	
(Mar	k One)	
[X]	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUAN OF 1934	T TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
	For the quarterly period ended Septem	ber 30, 2012
or	J. P	
[]	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUAN' OF 1934	TTO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
	For the transition period from	to
Com	mission file number: 001-34501	
JUN	IPER NETWORKS, INC.	
	ct name of registrant as specified in its	charter)
Dela	ware	77-0422528
(Stat	e or other jurisdiction of	(I.R.S. Employer
inco	poration or organization)	Identification No.)
1194	North Mathilda Avenue	
Sunn	yvale, California	94089
	lress of principal executive offices) 745-2000	(Zip code)
	istrant's telephone number, including a	ea code)
	C 11 1 C C	

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filings requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Non-accelerated filer o Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o (Do not check if a smaller

reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No x

There were approximately 515,574,955 shares of the Company's Common Stock, par value \$0.00001, outstanding as of October 31, 2012.

Juniper Networks, Inc.
Table of Contents

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION	<u>3</u>
Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>3</u>
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 and 2011	<u>3</u>
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011	4
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 and 2011	<u>5</u>
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>6</u>
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>36</u>
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>48</u>
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	<u>48</u>
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION	<u>49</u>
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	<u>49</u>
Item 1A. Risk Factors	<u>49</u>
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>61</u>
Item 6. Exhibits	<u>62</u>
<u>SIGNATURES</u>	<u>63</u>
Exhibit Index	<u>64</u>
2	

Table of Contents

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Juniper Networks, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

(Onaudited)	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended Septemb 30,	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Net revenues:				
Product	\$838,179	\$861,935	\$2,414,714	\$2,630,803
Service	280,132	243,861	809,854	697,149
Total net revenues	1,118,311	1,105,796	3,224,568	3,327,952
Cost of revenues:				
Product	334,645	286,609	907,863	844,746
Service	109,835	107,583	340,946	313,551
Total cost of revenues	444,480	394,192	1,248,809	1,158,297
Gross margin	673,831	711,604	1,975,759	2,169,655
Operating expenses:				
Research and development	288,178	257,096	826,514	776,325
Sales and marketing	261,026	254,933	778,200	747,859
General and administrative	49,442	44,455	152,883	133,639
Amortization of purchased intangible assets	1,148	1,263	3,562	4,139
Restructuring and other charges	31,018	16,813	36,218	15,550
Acquisition-related and other charges	250	18	1,186	6,804
Total operating expenses	631,062	574,578	1,798,563	1,684,316
Operating income	42,769	137,026	177,196	485,339
Other expense, net	(3,956)	(15,957	(25,617)	(36,107)
Income before income taxes and noncontrollin interest	^{1g} 38,813	121,069	151,579	449,232
Income tax provision	21,999	37,398	60,776	120,383
Consolidated net income	16,814	83,671	90,803	328,849
Adjust for net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest	_	(8) —	124
Net income attributable to Juniper Networks	\$16,814	\$83,663	\$90,803	\$328,973
Net income per share attributable to Juniper Networks common stockholders:				
Basic	\$0.03	\$0.16	\$0.17	\$0.62
Diluted	\$0.03	\$0.16	\$0.17	\$0.60
Shares used in computing net income per share	e:			
Basic	521,178	529,286	525,419	530,994
Diluted	524,537	536,583	530,343	544,086
Comprehensive income	\$30,403	\$67,425	\$113,620	\$324,756

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except par values)

		September 30, 2012 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2011	
ASSETS		(Chadanca)		
Current assets:				
Cash and cash equivalent	ts	\$2,707,940	\$2,910,420	
Short-term investments		439,278	641,323	
Accounts receivable, net	of allowances	397,082	577,386	
Deferred tax assets, net		229,374	154,310	
Prepaid expenses and oth	ner current assets	168,625	156,222	
Total current assets		3,942,299	4,439,661	
Property and equipment,	net	768,530	598,581	
Long-term investments		900,769	740,659	
Restricted cash and inves	stments	102,661	78,307	
Purchased intangible asso	ets, net	118,655	123,114	
Goodwill	,	3,987,073	3,928,144	
Other long-term assets		140,607	75,354	
Total assets		\$9,960,594	\$9,983,820	
LIABILITIES AND STO	OCKHOLDERS' EQUITY			
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable		\$224,242	\$324,843	
Accrued compensation		230,102	223,018	
Accrued warranty		29,776	28,276	
Deferred revenue		771,709	712,663	
Income taxes payable		66,996	12,545	
Other accrued liabilities		178,976	165,358	
Total current liabilities		1,501,801	1,466,703	
Long-term debt		999,145	999,034	
Long-term deferred rever	nue	221,217	254,364	
Long-term income taxes	payable	116,929	108,471	
Other long-term liabilitie	es	41,622	65,590	
Total liabilities		2,880,714	2,894,162	
Commitments and contin	ngencies			
Juniper Networks stockh	olders' equity:			
•	ock, \$0.00001 par value; 10,000 shares authorized; none	.		
issued and outstanding				
Common stock, \$0.0000	1 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; 515,332 share	es		
and		5	5	
	and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and	5	3	
December 31, 2011, re-	-			
Additional paid-in capita		10,042,392	10,079,169	
Accumulated other comp	orehensive income (loss)	5,227	(17,590)
Accumulated deficit		•) (2,972,402)
Total Juniper Networks s	stockholders' equity	7,079,404	7,089,182	
Noncontrolling interest		476	476	
Total stockholders' equit	y	7,079,880	7,089,658	

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

\$9,960,594

\$9,983,820

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

	Nine Months 30,	Ended September	•
	2012	2011	
Cash flows from operating activities:	2012	2011	
Consolidated net income	\$90,803	\$328,849	
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net income to net cash provided by	Ψ>0,005	Ψ320,019	
operating activities:			
Non-cash portion of share-based compensation	186,002	165,236	
Depreciation and amortization	137,855	125,986	
Restructuring and other charges	88,618	15,550	
Deferred income taxes	(75,064) (6,014)
(Gain) loss on investments, net	(7,810) 982	
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	(7,184) (44,524)
Amortization of debt issuance costs	708	509	
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:			
Accounts receivable, net	180,368	152,019	
Prepaid expenses and other assets	(54,089) 14,103	
Accounts payable	(114,020) (25,962)
Accrued compensation	5,608	(62,625)
Income taxes payable	64,715	70,241	-
Other accrued liabilities	(24,838) 7,759	
Deferred revenue	15,899	1,012	
Net cash provided by operating activities	487,571	743,121	
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Purchases of property and equipment	(256,753) (187,886)
Purchases of trading investments	(3,776) (4,575)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments	(1,009,076) (1,893,474)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments	625,119	1,050,936	
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale investments	431,705	446,150	
Payments for business acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired	(90,487) (31,101)
Proceeds from sales of privately-held investments	32,715	2,143	
Purchases of privately-held investments	(11,123) (34,545)
Purchase of licensed software	(65,297) —	
Changes in restricted cash	(20,820) (1,144)
Net cash used in investing activities	(367,793) (653,496)
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Proceeds from issuance of common stock	88,225	341,063	
Purchases and retirement of common stock	(400,070) (548,590)
Payment for capital lease obligation	(1,430) —	
Issuance of long-term debt, net		991,556	
Change in customer financing arrangements	(16,167) (7,616)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	7,184	44,524	
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	(322,258) 820,937	
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(202,480) 910,562	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	2,910,420	1,811,887	

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements \$2,707,940

\$2,722,449

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Juniper Networks, Inc. ("Juniper Networks" or the "Company") have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial information as well as the instructions to Form 10-Q and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011, is derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2011. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, including normal recurring accruals, considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2012, or any future period. The information included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q ("Report") should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," "Risk Factors," "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," and the Consolidated Financial Statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011. Certain amounts in the prior year Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

During the third quarter of 2012, the Company recorded net out of period adjustments reducing income before income taxes and noncontrolling interest by \$8.2 million. These net adjustments resulted in increased research and development expense by \$18.6 million related to prototype development costs, partially offset by increased net revenues of \$6.2 million related to the reversal of certain revenue obligations and reduced cost of revenues by \$4.2 million related to inventory purchases. The Company assessed the materiality of these adjustments, using relevant quantitative and qualitative factors, and determined that these adjustments, both individually and in the aggregate, were not material to any previously reported period.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2012, the Company aligned its organizational structure to focus on its platform and software strategy, which resulted in two reportable segments organized principally by product families: Platform Systems Division ("PSD") and Software Solutions Division ("SSD"). In fiscal 2011, the Company was organized into two reportable segments, Infrastructure and Service Layer Technology. The Company has reclassified the segment data for the prior periods to conform to the current period's presentation. The segment change did not impact previously reported consolidated net revenues, operating income, net income, and net income per share. See Note 13, Segments, for further discussion of the Company's segment reorganization.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company owned a 60 percent interest in a joint venture with Nokia Siemens Networks B.V. ("NSN"). Given the Company's majority ownership interest in the joint venture, the accounts of the joint venture have been consolidated with the accounts of the Company, and a noncontrolling interest has been recorded for the noncontrolling investor's interests in the net assets and operations of the joint venture. In July 2011, NSN and the Company entered into an agreement to cease operation of and terminate the joint venture. NSN has assumed the activities of the joint venture. The Company is in the process of winding down this joint venture and the termination of this joint venture is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

There have been no material changes to the Company's significant accounting policies as compared to the accounting policies described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2012-02, Topic 350 - Intangibles - Goodwill and Other ("ASU 2012-02"), which amends Topic 350 to allow an entity to first assess

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying value. An entity would not be required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible unless the entity determines, based on the qualitative assessment, that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less than the carrying value. ASU 2012-02 is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012 and early adoption is permitted. The Company intends to adopt this standard in the first quarter of 2013 and does not expect the adoption will have an impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No. 2011-08, Topic 350 - Intangibles - Goodwill and Other ("ASU 2011-08"), which amends Topic 350 and provides entities an option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment testing on goodwill is necessary. Specifically, an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the current two-step test. If an entity believes, as a result of its qualitative assessment, that it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the quantitative impairment test is required. Otherwise, no further testing is required. The Company adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2012. The Company's adoption of the standard during the first quarter of 2012 did not impact its consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Topic 220 - Presentation of Comprehensive Income ("ASU 2011-05"), which requires companies to present net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous statement or in two separate, but consecutive, statements. In addition, in December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, Topic 220 - Comprehensive Income ("ASU 2011-12"), which defers the requirement to present components of reclassifications of other comprehensive income on the face of the income statement. The Company adopted both standards in the first quarter of 2012. The Company's adoption of the standard during the first quarter of 2012 did not impact its consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Topic 820 - Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs ("ASU 2011-04"), which amends the fair value measurement guidance and includes some enhanced disclosure requirements. The most significant change in disclosures is an expansion of the information required for Level 3 measurements based on unobservable inputs. The Company adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2012. The Company's adoption of the standard during the first quarter of 2012 did not impact its consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

Note 3. Business Combinations

The Company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the operating results of acquired businesses from the date of each acquisition. Pro forma results of operations for these acquisitions have not been presented as the financial impact to the Company's consolidated results of operations, both individually and in aggregate, is not material.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company completed two acquisitions. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recorded adjustments of \$0.6 million to acquired assets and liabilities related to the acquisitions completed in 2012 and finalized the purchase accounting related to these acquisitions.

On February 13, 2012, the Company acquired 100% of the equity securities of Mykonos Software, Inc. ("Mykonos"). The acquisition of Mykonos is intended to extend Juniper Networks' security portfolio with an intrusion deception system capable of detecting an attacker before an attack is in process. Goodwill recognized as the result of the

acquisition was assigned to the SSD segment.

On March 8, 2012, the Company acquired a source code license, patent joint-ownership, and employees related to the service management layer of BitGravity, Inc.'s ("BitGravity") Content Delivery Network ("CDN") technology. Goodwill recognized as the result of the acquisition was assigned to the SSD segment.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

The following table presents the purchase consideration allocations for these acquisitions, including cash and cash equivalents acquired (in millions):

	Mykonos	BitGravity	Total	
Net tangible assets/(liabilities) acquired	\$(0.2) \$0.1	\$(0.1)
Intangible assets acquired	24.3	12.4	36.7	
Goodwill	58.5	0.5	59.0	
Total	\$82.6	\$13.0	\$95.6	

The Company recorded \$0.3 million of acquisition-related costs during the three months ended September 30, 2012 and an immaterial amount of acquisition-related costs during the three months ended September 30, 2011. Acquisition-related costs of \$1.2 million and \$9.3 million were recorded during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. These acquisition-related charges were expensed in the period incurred and reported in the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income within cost of revenues and operating expenses.

The goodwill recognized for the acquisitions completed during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, was primarily attributable to expected synergies and was not deductible for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Intangible Assets Acquired

The following table presents details of the intangible assets acquired through the business combinations completed during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 (in millions, except years):

2012 Acquisitions

	2012 Acquisitio	1115
	Weighted	
	Average	Amount
	Estimated Usefu	ıl Amount
	Life (In Years)	
Existing technology	5	\$31.7
Trade name and trademarks	7	1.0
In-process research and development ("IPR&D")	_	4.0
Total		\$36.7

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Note 4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Investments in Available-for-Sale and Trading Securities

The following tables summarize the Company's unrealized gains and losses, based on the specific identification method, and fair value of investments designated as available-for-sale and trading securities as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 (in millions):

	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
As of September 30, 2012				
Fixed income securities:				
Asset-backed securities	\$175.4	\$0.4	\$ —	\$175.8
Certificates of deposit	26.9			26.9
Commercial paper	3.0			3.0
Corporate debt securities	566.2	3.1	_	569.3
Foreign government debt securities	10.0	_	_	10.0
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	251.2	0.3		251.5
Money market funds	1,430.2		_	1,430.2
U.S. government securities	462.7	0.2	_	462.9
Total fixed income securities	2,925.6	4.0	_	2,929.6
Publicly-traded equity securities	3.0	0.6	_	3.6
Total available-for-sale securities	2,928.6	4.6		2,933.2
Trading securities ^(*)	12.6	_	_	12.6
Total	\$2,941.2	\$4.6	\$ —	\$2,945.8
Reported as:				
Cash equivalents	\$1,605.7	\$ —	\$ —	\$1,605.7
Short-term investments	438.2	1.1		439.3
Long-term investments	897.3	3.5		900.8
Total	\$2,941.2	\$4.6	\$ —	\$2,945.8

^(*) Balance includes the Company's non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets. For additional information, see Note 12, Employee Benefit Plans, under the section Deferred Compensation Plan.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
As of December 31, 2011				
Fixed income securities:				
Asset-backed securities	\$124.7	\$0.1	\$(0.1) \$124.7
Certificates of deposit	31.8			31.8
Commercial paper	10.0	_	_	10.0
Corporate debt securities	508.2	1.0	(0.5) 508.7
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	430.8	0.3	(0.1) 431.0
Money market funds	1,316.2	_	_	1,316.2
U.S. government securities	301.1		(0.1) 301.0
Total fixed income securities	2,722.8	1.4	(0.8) 2,723.4
Total available-for-sale securities	2,722.8	1.4	(0.8) 2,723.4
Trading securities ^(*)	9.3	_	_	9.3
Total	\$2,732.1	\$1.4	\$(0.8) \$2,732.7
Reported as:				
Cash equivalents	\$1,350.7	\$ —	\$ —	\$1,350.7
Short-term investments	640.9	0.4	_	641.3
Long-term investments	740.5	1.0	(0.8)) 740.7
Total	\$2,732.1	\$1.4	\$(0.8) \$2,732.7

^(*) Balance includes the Company's non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets. For additional information, see Note 12, Employee Benefit Plans, under the section Deferred Compensation Plan.

The following table presents the maturities of the Company's fixed income securities as of September 30, 2012 (in millions):

	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
Due within one year	\$2,028.3	\$0.5	\$ —	\$2,028.8
Due between one and five years	897.3	3.5	_	900.8
Total	\$2,925.6	\$4.0	\$ —	\$2,929.6

As of September 30, 2012, the unrealized losses for investments in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and more than twelve months were not material. The following tables present the Company's available-for-sale investments that were in an unrealized loss position as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 (in millions):

	Less than 1	2 Months	12 Months	or Greater	Total	
	Fair	Unrealized	Fair	Unrealized	Fair	Unrealized
	Value	Loss	Value	Loss	Value	Loss
As of September 30, 2012						
Corporate debt securities	\$40.8	\$ —	\$ —	\$ —	\$40.8	\$ —

Edgar Filing:	JUNIPER	NETWORKS	INC - Form	10-Q
---------------	----------------	-----------------	------------	------

U.S. government securities	51.0	_		_	51.0	
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	20.0		_	_	20.0	
Asset-backed securities	16.9		1.4	_	18.3	
Total	\$128.7	\$ —	\$1.4	\$ —	\$130.1	\$ —

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)

	Less than 1	2 Months	12 Months	or Greater	Total		
	Fair	Unrealized	Fair	Unrealized	Fair	Unrealize	ed
	Value	Loss	Value	Loss	Value	Loss	
As of December 31, 2011							
Corporate debt securities	\$189.9	\$(0.5)	\$ —	\$ —	\$189.9	\$(0.5)
U.S. government securities	186.7	(0.1)	_		186.7	(0.1)
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	146.0	(0.1)	_		146.0	(0.1)
Asset-backed securities (*)	76.8	(0.1)	0.3		77.1	(0.1)
Total	\$599.4	\$(0.8)	\$0.3	\$ —	\$599.7	\$(0.8)

^(*) Balance greater than 12 months includes investments that were in an immaterial unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2011.

The Company had 39 and 135 investments in unrealized loss positions as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. The gross unrealized losses related to these investments were primarily due to changes in market interest rates. For the fixed income securities that have unrealized losses, the Company determined that (i) it does not have the intent to sell any of these investments and (ii) it is not more likely than not that it will be required to sell any of these investments before recovery of the entire amortized cost basis. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company did not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired. The Company reviews its investments on a regular basis to identify and evaluate investments that have an indication of possible impairment. The Company aggregates its investments by category and length of time the securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position to facilitate its evaluation.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The Company classifies cash and investments as restricted cash and investments on its Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for: (i) amounts held in escrow accounts, as required by certain acquisitions completed between 2005 and 2012; (ii) the India Gratuity Trust and Israel Retirement Trust, which cover statutory severance obligations in the event of termination of any of the Company's India and Israel employees, respectively; and (iii) the Directors and Officers ("D&O") indemnification trust. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company distributed approximately \$0.1 million and \$79.6 million of restricted cash, respectively, mainly related to amounts held in escrow accounts for acquisitions.

The following table summarizes the Company's cash and investments that are classified as restricted cash and investments in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and designated as available-for-sale securities (in millions):

	As of		
	September 30,	December 31,	
	2012	2011	
Restricted cash:			
Demand deposits	\$0.9	\$0.6	
Total restricted cash	0.9	0.6	
Restricted investments:			
Corporate debt securities	1.9	1.6	
Mutual funds	1.2	1.0	
Money market funds	98.7	75.1	

Total restricted investments	101.8	77.7
Total restricted cash and investments	\$102.7	\$78.3

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the unrealized gains and losses related to restricted investments were not material.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Privately-Held Investments

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the carrying values of the Company's privately-held and other equity investments of \$33.9 million and \$51.8 million, respectively, were included in other long-term assets in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and were accounted for under the cost method. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company invested \$5.0 million and \$11.1 million, respectively, in privately-held investments. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company invested \$25.6 million and \$34.5 million, respectively, in privately-held and other equity investments.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized a net gain of \$5.8 million and \$6.6 million, respectively, related to the Company's privately-held investments. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company recognized a loss of \$1.8 million from the impairment of a privately-held investment partially offset by gains on other privately-held investments.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Note 5. Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tables provide a summary of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and as reported in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2012 Using:

	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Significant Other Observable Remaining Inputs	Significant Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	
	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)	Total
Assets measured at fair value:	,	,		
Available-for-sale debt securities:				
Asset-backed securities	\$ —	\$175.8	\$ —	\$175.8
Certificate of deposit	_	26.9	_	26.9
Commercial paper	_	3.0	_	3.0
Corporate debt securities (1)	_	571.2	_	571.2
Foreign government debt securities	_	10.0	_	10.0
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	241.5	10.0	_	251.5
Money market funds (2)	1,528.9		_	1,528.9
Mutual funds (3)	1.2		_	1.2
U.S. government securities	260.8	202.1	_	462.9
Total available-for-sale debt securities	2,032.4	999.0	_	3,031.4
Available-for-sale equity securities:				
Publicly-traded equity securities	3.6			3.6
Total available-for-sale securities	2,036.0	999.0	_	3,035.0
Trading securities:				
Mutual funds (4)	12.6			12.6
Derivative assets:				
Foreign exchange contracts	_	4.6		4.6
Total assets measured at fair value	\$2,048.6	\$1,003.6	\$ —	\$3,052.2
Liabilities measured at fair value: Derivative liabilities:				
Foreign exchange contracts	\$ —	\$0.6	\$ —	\$0.6
Total liabilities measured at fair value	\$—	\$0.6	\$—	\$0.6
	T	+	T	+ 0.0

⁽¹⁾ Balance includes \$1.9 million of restricted investments measured at fair market value, related to the Company's India Gratuity Trust.

(4)

Balance includes \$98.7 million of restricted investments measured at fair market value, related to the Company's D&O trust and acquisitions related escrows.

⁽³⁾ Balance relates to the restricted investments measured at fair market value of the Company's India Gratuity Trust.

Balance relates to investments measured at fair value related to the Company's non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

	Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2012 Using:			
	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Significant Other Observable Remaining Inputs	Significant Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	
	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)	Total
Total assets measured at fair value, reported as Cash equivalents Short-term investments Long-term investments Restricted investments Prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$1,430.2 212.7 305.8 99.9	\$175.5 226.6 595.0 1.9 4.6	\$— — — —	\$1,605.7 439.3 900.8 101.8 4.6
Total assets measured at fair value	\$2,048.6	\$1,003.6	\$ —	\$3,052.2
Total liabilities measured at fair value, reported as:	d			
Other accrued liabilities	\$ —	\$0.6	\$ —	\$0.6
Total liabilities measured at fair value	\$—	\$0.6	\$ —	\$0.6
	Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Using:			
	5 5222-81			
	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Significant Other Observable Remaining Inputs	Significant Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	
	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For	Other Observable Remaining	Other Unobservable Remaining	Total
Assets measured at fair value: Available-for-sale debt securities:	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2)	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2)	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1)	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$—	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$—	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2)	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$—	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2) Mutual funds (3)	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 116.8 —	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3 1.0
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2)	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$— — — 314.2 1,391.3 1.0 149.3	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3 1.0 301.0
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2) Mutual funds (3) U.S. government securities	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 116.8 — — 151.7	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3 1.0
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2) Mutual funds (3) U.S. government securities Total available-for-sale debt securities Trading securities: Mutual funds (4)	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$— — — 314.2 1,391.3 1.0 149.3	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 116.8 — — 151.7	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3 1.0 301.0
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2) Mutual funds (3) U.S. government securities Total available-for-sale debt securities Trading securities: Mutual funds (4) Derivative assets:	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 116.8 — — 151.7 945.3	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3 1.0 301.0 2,801.1
Available-for-sale debt securities: Asset-backed securities Certificate of deposit Commercial paper Corporate debt securities (1) Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Money market funds (2) Mutual funds (3) U.S. government securities Total available-for-sale debt securities Trading securities: Mutual funds (4)	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets (Level 1) \$	Other Observable Remaining Inputs (Level 2) \$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 116.8 — — 151.7	Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	\$124.7 31.8 10.0 510.3 431.0 1,391.3 1.0 301.0 2,801.1

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Derivative liabilities:

Foreign exchange contracts \$— \$9.6 \$— \$9.6 Total liabilities measured at fair value \$— \$9.6 \$— \$9.6

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

⁽⁴⁾ Balance relates to investments measured at fair value related to the Company's non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets.

	Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011			
	Using:			
	Quoted Prices in Active Markets For Identical Assets	Other Observable Remaining Inputs	Significant Other Unobservable Remaining Inputs	
	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)	Total
Total assets measured at fair value, reported as	:			
Cash equivalents	\$1,316.2	\$34.5	\$ —	\$1,350.7
Short-term investments	168.9	472.4	_	641.3
Long-term investments	303.9	436.8		740.7
Restricted investments	76.1	1.6		77.7
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		0.4	_	0.4
Total assets measured at fair value	\$1,865.1	\$945.7	\$ —	\$2,810.8
Total liabilities measured at fair value, reported as:	i			
Other accrued liabilities	\$—	\$9.6	\$ —	\$9.6
Total liabilities measured at fair value	\$ —	\$9.6	\$ —	\$9.6

The Company's Level 2 fixed income securities are priced using quoted market prices for similar instruments or non-binding market prices that are corroborated by observable market data. The Company uses inputs such as actual trade data, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency which are obtained from quoted market prices, independent pricing vendors, or other sources, to determine the ultimate fair value of these assets. The Company's policy is to recognize asset or liability transfers among Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 as of the actual date of the events or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the Company had no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy of its assets or liabilities measured at fair value.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Certain of the Company's assets, including intangible assets, goodwill, and privately-held equity investments, are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis if impairment is indicated.

Privately-held equity investments, which are normally carried at cost, are measured at fair value due to events and circumstances that the Company identified as significantly impacting the fair value of the investments. The Company

⁽¹⁾ Balance includes \$1.6 million of restricted investments measured at fair market value, related to the Company's India Gratuity Trust.

Balance includes \$75.1 million of restricted investments measured at fair market value, related to the Company's D&O trust and acquisition related escrows.

⁽³⁾ Balance relates to the restricted investments measured at fair market value of the Company's India Gratuity Trust.

measured the fair value of its privately-held equity investments using an analysis of the financial condition and near-term prospects of the investee, including recent financing activities and their capital structure. During the third quarter of 2012, privately-held equity investments with a carrying value of \$6.0 million were measured at fair value. As of September 30, 2012, their fair value was zero. As of December 31, 2011, the carrying value of privately-held equity investments was \$0.4 million. These investments were classified as Level 3 assets due to the absence of quoted market prices and inherent lack of liquidity.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment loss of \$6.0 million and \$20.0 million, respectively, for privately-held equity investments measured at fair. During the three and nine months ended September, 30, 2011, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment loss of \$1.8 million for privately-held equity investments at fair. During the third quarter of 2012, certain purchased intangible assets with a carrying value of 5.4 million were measured at fair value. As of September 30, 2012, their fair was zero. As of December 31, 2011, there were no purchased intangible assets

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. The Company measured the fair value of these assets primarily using discounted cash flow projections. Purchased intangible assets were classified as Level 3 assets, due to the absence of quoted market prices. See Note 7, Goodwill and Purchased Intangibles Assets, for further information.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, an other-than-temporary impairment charge of \$5.4 million related to purchased intangible assets was recognized in cost of revenues. There were no such charges for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011.

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company had no liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

Assets and Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Value

The carrying amounts of the Company's accounts receivable, financing receivables, accounts payable, and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturities. The fair value of the Company's long-term debt is disclosed in Note 10, Long-Term Debt and Financing, and was determined using quoted market prices (Level 1).

Note 6. Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivatives to partially offset its market exposure to fluctuations in certain foreign currencies and does not enter into derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.

The notional amount of Company's foreign currency derivatives are summarized as follows (in millions):

	AS OI		
	September 30,	December 31,	
	2012	2011	
Cash flow hedges	\$130.2	\$184.3	
Non-designated derivatives	102.8	122.7	
Total	\$233.0	\$307.0	

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company can use foreign currency forward or option contracts to hedge certain forecasted foreign currency transactions relating to cost of services and operating expenses. The derivatives are intended to hedge the U.S. Dollar equivalent of the Company's planned cost of services and operating expenses denominated in foreign currencies. These derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges. Execution of these cash flow hedge derivatives typically occurs every month with maturities of one year or less. The effective portion of the derivative's gain or loss is initially reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), and upon occurrence of the forecasted transaction, is subsequently reclassified into the cost of services or operating expense line item to which the hedged transaction relates. The Company records any ineffectiveness of the hedging instruments in other expense, net in its Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Cash flows from such hedges are classified as operating activities. All amounts within other comprehensive income are expected to be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months.

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the total fair value of the Company's derivative assets recorded in other current assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets was \$4.6 million and \$0.4 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the total fair value of the Company's derivative liabilities recorded

in other accrued liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets was \$0.6 million and \$9.6 million, respectively.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized a gain of \$5.7 million and \$6.5 million, respectively, in accumulated other comprehensive income for the effective portion of its derivative instruments and reclassified a loss of \$3.2 million and \$8.7 million, respectively, from other comprehensive income to operating expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company recognized a loss of \$5.6 million and a gain of \$1.5 million, respectively, in accumulated other comprehensive

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

income for the effective portion of its derivative instruments and reclassified a gain of \$1.2 million and \$3.4 million, respectively, from other comprehensive income to operating expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The ineffective portion of the Company's derivative instruments recognized in its Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income was not material during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011.

Non-Designated Derivatives

The Company also uses foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate variability in gains and losses generated from the re-measurement of certain monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. These derivatives do not qualify for special hedge accounting treatment. These derivatives are carried at fair value with changes recorded in other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives are largely offset by re-measurement of the underlying assets and liabilities. Cash flows from such derivatives are classified as operating activities. The derivatives have maturities of approximately two months.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized a net gain of \$0.3 million and \$0.5 million, respectively, within other expense, net, on its Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income from non-designated derivative instruments. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company recognized a net gain of \$0.8 million and \$1.0 million, respectively, within other expense, net, on its Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income from non-designated derivative instruments.

Note 7. Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The following table presents the goodwill activity allocated to the Company's reportable segments during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 (in millions):

	PSD	SSD	Total	
Balance as of January 1, 2012	\$1,795.6	\$2,132.5	\$3,928.1	
Additions due to business combinations	_	59.6	59.6	
Accumulated adjustment to goodwill	_	(0.6) (0.6)
Balance as of September 30, 2012	\$1,795.6	\$2,191.5	\$3,987.1	

The additions to goodwill were based on the purchase price allocation of the acquisitions completed during the first quarter of 2012. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recorded adjustments of \$0.6 million to acquired assets and liabilities related to the acquisitions completed in 2012. There were no impairments to goodwill during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Purchased Intangible Assets

The Company's purchased intangible assets were as follows (in millions):

	Gross	Accumulated Amortization	Impairments and Other Charges	l Net
As of September 30, 2012				
Intangible assets with finite lives:				
Technologies and patents	\$538.1	\$(426.4	\$(16.1)) \$95.6
Other	92.5	(69.4) —	23.1
Total purchased intangible assets	\$630.6	\$(495.8	\$(16.1)) \$118.7
As of December 31, 2011				
Intangible assets with finite lives:				
Technologies and patents	\$499.5	\$(404.2	\$	\$95.3
Other	91.5	(66.5) —	25.0
Total intangible assets with finite lives	591.0	(470.7) —	120.3
IPR&D with indefinite lives	2.8	_	_	2.8
Total purchased intangible assets	\$593.8	\$(470.7) \$—	\$123.1

During the third quarter of 2012, \$6.8 million of acquired IPR&D accounted for as indefinite lived assets reached technological feasibility and were reclassified as amortizable finite-lived assets. Amortization of purchased intangible assets included in operating expenses and cost of product revenues totaled \$9.0 million and \$6.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and \$25.1 million and \$20.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.

In connection with the restructuring plan discussed in Note 9, Restructuring and Other Charges, the Company assessed the impairment and remaining useful life of certain intangible assets and determined intangible assets of \$5.4 million were impaired and written-down to their fair value of zero, and other intangible assets of \$10.7 million will no longer be utilized. As a result, the Company recorded \$16.1 million in charges related to these items during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, which are included in cost of revenues in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The purchased intangible assets balance as of September 30, 2012, includes intangible assets acquired through acquisitions completed during the first quarter of 2012. Refer to Note 3, Business Combinations, for further details.

As of September 30, 2012, the estimated future amortization expense of purchased intangible assets with finite lives is as follows (in millions):

Years Ending December 31,	Amount
Remainder of 2012	\$7.2
2013	28.6
2014	28.5
2015	24.9
2016	12.2
Thereafter	17.3
Total	\$118.7

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Note 8. Other Financial Information

Inventories, net

The Company's inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Company purchases and holds inventory to ensure adequate component supplies over the life of the underlying products. The majority of the Company's inventory is production components. Inventories, net are reported within prepaid expenses and other current assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and consisted of the following (in millions):

	As of		
	September 30, 2012	December 31, 2011	
Inventories, net			
Production materials	\$61.4	\$52.4	
Finished goods	19.4	16.7	
Total inventories, net	\$80.8	\$69.1	

In connection with the restructuring plan discussed in Note 9, Restructuring and Other Charges, the Company recorded a charge during the third quarter of 2012, to cost of revenues of \$36.3 million, representing component inventory held in excess of forecasted demand.

Licensed Software

On July 3, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Riverbed Technology, Inc. ("Riverbed") to license Riverbed's Application Delivery Controller ("ADC") software in exchange for the aggregate consideration of \$87.9 million, which consist of the following: (1) cash consideration of \$75.0 million (\$65.0 million paid in the third quarter of 2012 and the remaining \$10.0 million payable in the third quarter of 2013); (2) technology integration services with a fair value of \$12.6 million; (3) technology partnership in wide area network optimization solutions; and (4) transaction costs of \$0.3 million. Contingent consideration of up to \$10.0 million has not been recorded but may also be payable to Riverbed if certain third-party approvals of the underlying technology integration services are not obtained.

The aggregate consideration of \$87.9 million was allocated to the acquired ADC software of \$84.3 million and associated prepaid maintenance and support of \$1.0 million. The licensed software acquired was reported within other long-term assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. It will be amortized over its useful life of 6 years beginning in the period in which the product is available for general release to customers, estimated to be in 2013. The amortization expense will be recognized in cost of product revenues.

The technology integration services require the Company to develop certain technology, cross-license of associated software, and to provide support over seven years. The fair value of technology integration services, less estimated amounts to be reimbursed is reported within deferred revenue on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts are deferred until the underlying technology has been delivered. In the event third-party approval is not obtained, \$20.0 million becomes immediately payable to Riverbed. This amount is held in escrow and reported within restricted cash and investments on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Warranties

The Company accrues for warranty costs as part of its cost of sales based on associated material costs, labor costs for customer support, and overhead at the time revenue is recognized. This provision is reported as accrued warranty within current liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the Company's warranty reserve during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 were as follows (in millions):

As of	
September 30,	
2012	
\$28.3	
24.3	
_	
(22.8)
\$29.8	
	2012 \$28.3 24.3 — (22.8

Deferred Revenue

Details of the Company's deferred revenue, as reported on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, were as follows (in millions):

As of		
September 30,	December 31,	
2012	2011	
\$299.4	\$288.1	
136.9	134.0	
436.3	422.1	
(103.3) (136.9)
333.0	285.2	
659.9	681.8	
\$992.9	\$967.0	
\$771.7	\$712.6	
221.2	254.4	
\$992.9	\$967.0	
	September 30, 2012 \$299.4 136.9 436.3 (103.3 333.0 659.9 \$992.9 \$771.7 221.2	September 30, December 31, 2012 2011 \$299.4 \$288.1 136.9 134.0 436.3 422.1 (103.3) (136.9 333.0 285.2 659.9 681.8 \$992.9 \$967.0 \$771.7 \$712.6 221.2 254.4

Deferred product revenue represents unrecognized revenue related to shipments to distributors that have not sold through to end-users, undelivered product commitments, and other shipments that have not met all revenue recognition criteria. Deferred product revenue is recorded net of the related costs of product revenue. Deferred service revenue represents customer payments made in advance for services, which include technical support, hardware and software maintenance, professional services, and training.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net consisted of the following (in millions):

_	Three Months Ended September 30,		er 30, Nine Mo	Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2012	2011	2012	2011		
Interest income	\$2.6	\$2.2	\$8.3	\$7.2		
Interest expense	(12.8) (13.9) (40.6) (35.6)	
Other	6.2	(4.2) 6.7	(7.7)	
Other expense, net	\$(4.0) \$(15.9)) \$(25.6) \$(36.1)	

Interest income primarily includes interest earned on the Company's cash, cash equivalents, and investments. Interest expense primarily includes interest expense from long-term debt and customer financing arrangements. Other income and expense typically consists of investment and foreign exchange gains and losses and other non-operational income and expense items. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized a net gain in Other of \$5.8 million and \$6.6 million, respectively, related to the Company's privately-held investments. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, Other included legal expenses unrelated to current or recent operations of \$1.4 million and \$6.8 million, respectively, and net losses on privately-held and other equity investments of \$1.1 million and \$1.0 million, respectively.

Note 9. Restructuring and Other Charges

Restructuring charges are based on the Company's restructuring plans that were committed to by management. These restructuring charges are recorded within cost of revenues or restructuring and other charges in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, as applicable. Any changes in the estimates of executing the approved plans will be reflected in the Company's results of operations. Restructuring liabilities are reported within other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

2012 Restructuring Plan

During the third quarter of 2012, the Company initiated a restructuring plan (the "2012 Restructuring Plan") to bring its cost structure more in line with its long-term financial and strategic model. The 2012 Restructuring Plan consists of workforce reductions, facility consolidations or closures, and supply chain and procurement efficiencies. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recorded \$29.1 million in severance costs and \$0.4 million of other charges related to the 2012 Restructuring Plan. These accrued amounts are expected to be paid out through the fourth quarter of 2012. In connection with its restructuring activities, the Company also recorded certain inventory and intangible asset impairment charges totaling \$52.4 million to cost of revenues.

2011 and 2009 Restructuring Plans

During the third quarter of 2011, the Company implemented a restructuring plan (the "2011 Restructuring Plan") in an effort to better align its business operations with the current market and macroeconomic conditions. The 2011 Restructuring Plan consisted of certain workforce reductions, facility closures and to a lesser extent, contract terminations.

During 2009, the Company implemented a restructuring plan (the "2009 Restructuring Plan," and together with the 2011 Restructuring Plan, the "Restructuring Plans") in an effort to better align its business operations with the market and macroeconomic conditions. The 2009 Restructuring Plan included restructuring of certain business functions that resulted in reductions of workforce and facilities. The Company recorded the majority of the restructuring charges associated with this plan during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

The Company recorded net restructuring charges of \$1.5 million and \$6.7 million during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, for severance and facilities related to the restructuring activities associated with the 2011 Restructuring Plan. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company recorded net restructuring charges of \$16.8 million and \$15.6 million, respectively, primarily in connection with the 2011 Restructuring Plan. As of

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

September 30, 2012, the remaining restructuring liability relates to severance costs under the 2011 Restructuring Plan which are expected to be paid during the fourth quarter of 2012, as well as facilities-related charges under the Restructuring Plans, which are expected to be completed by March 2018.

In connection with the restructuring plans discussed above, the Company expects to record aggregate future charges of approximately \$20.0 million through 2013, consisting of approximately \$4.0 million and \$16.0 million related to workforce reductions and facility closures and other charges, respectively.

The following table provides a summary of changes in the restructuring liability related to the Company's plans during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 (in millions):

	December 31, 2011	Charges	Cash Payments	Non-cash Settlements and Other	September 30, 2012
Severance	\$3.1	\$32.6	\$(6.6	\$1.0	\$30.1
Facilities	1.0	3.2	(1.5) —	2.7
Other charges		0.4	_	(0.4)	
Total	\$4.1	\$36.2	\$(8.1	\$0.6	\$32.8

Note 10. Long-Term Debt and Financing

Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the Company's long-term debt (in millions, except percentages):

As of September 30, 2012			
Amount		Effective Interest Rates	
\$300.0	3.12	%	
300.0	4.63	%	
400.0	6.01	%	
1,000.0			
(0.9)		
\$999.1			
	\$300.0 300.0 400.0 1,000.0 (0.9	Amount Effective I Rates \$300.0	

The effective interest rates for the 2016 Notes, 2021 Notes, and 2041 Notes (collectively the "Notes") include the interest on the Notes, accretion of the discount, and amortization of issuance costs. At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the estimated fair value of the Notes included in long-term debt was approximately \$1,082.4 million and \$1,069.8 million, respectively, based on quoted market prices (Level 1).

Customer Financing Arrangements

The Company has customer financing arrangements to sell its accounts receivable to a major third-party financing provider. The program does not and is not intended to affect the timing of revenue recognition because the Company only recognizes revenue upon sell-through. Under the financing arrangements, proceeds from the financing provider

are due to the Company 30 days from the sale of the receivable. In these transactions with the financing provider, the Company surrendered control over the transferred assets. The accounts receivable were isolated from the Company and put beyond the reach of creditors, even in the event of bankruptcy. The Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through obligations or rights to redeem, transfer, or repurchase the receivables after they have been transferred.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Pursuant to the financing arrangements for the sale of receivables, the Company sold net receivables of \$198.8 million and \$153.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and \$482.0 million and \$552.4 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.

The Company received cash proceeds from the financing provider of \$156.7 million and \$142.8 million during the three months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and \$482.5 million and \$544.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the amounts owed by the financing provider were \$152.3 million and \$162.9 million, respectively, and were recorded in accounts receivable on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The portion of the receivable financed that has not been recognized as revenue is accounted for as a financing arrangement and is included in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the estimated cash received from the financing provider not recognized as revenue from distributors was \$17.8 million and \$33.3 million, respectively.

Note 11. Equity

Stock Repurchase Activities

In June 2012, the Company's Board of Directors (the "Board") approved a stock repurchase program (the "2012 Stock Repurchase Program"), which authorized the Company to repurchase up to \$1.0 billion of its common stock from time to time in management's discretion. This authorization was in addition to the \$1.0 billion approved by the Board in February 2010 (the "2010 Stock Repurchase Program").

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company repurchased and retired approximately 13.9 million and 21.3 million shares of its common stock under its stock repurchase programs at an average price of \$18.00 and \$18.60 per share for an aggregate purchase price of \$250.0 million and \$395.6 million, respectively. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company repurchased and retired approximately 8.9 million and 17.5 million shares of its common stock at an average price of \$21.47 and \$30.93 per share for an aggregate purchase price of \$191.0 million and \$541.2 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, there were \$818.2 million of authorized funds remaining under the 2012 Stock Repurchase Program. There were no remaining funds under the 2010 Stock Repurchase Program.

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Juniper Networks

The activity for each component of comprehensive income attributable to Juniper Networks, net of related taxes, was as follows (in millions):

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended September 30	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Consolidated net income	\$16.8	\$83.7	\$90.8	\$328.8
Other comprehensive income:				
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments	8.4	(8.7	17.5	(5.8)
Change in foreign currency translation	5.2	(7.5	5.3	1.7

adjustment					
Total other comprehensive income (loss)	13.6	(16.2)	22.8	(4.1)
Consolidated comprehensive income	30.4	67.5	113.6	324.7	
Adjust for comprehensive loss attributable	;				
to	_	_	_	0.1	
noncontrolling interest					
Comprehensive income attributable to	\$30.4	\$67.5	\$113.6	\$324.8	
Juniper Networks	\$30.4	\$07.3	\$115.0	Φ324.0	
23					

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans

Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company's share-based compensation plans include the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2006 Plan"), 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the "2000 Plan"), Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Plan (the "1996 Plan"), as well as various equity incentive plans assumed through acquisitions. Under these plans, the Company has granted (or in the case of acquired plans, assumed) stock options, restricted stock units ("RSUs"), and performance share awards ("PSAs"). In addition, the Company's 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "2008 Purchase Plan") permits eligible employees to acquire shares of the Company's common stock at a 15% discount to the offering price (as determined in the 2008 Purchase Plan) through periodic payroll deductions of up to 10% of base compensation, subject to individual purchase limits of 6,000 shares in any twelve-month period or \$25,000 worth of stock, determined at the fair market value of the shares at the time the stock purchase option is granted, in one calendar year.

The 2006 Plan was adopted and approved by the Company's stockholders in May 2006 and had an initial authorized share reserve of 64.5 million shares of common stock plus the addition of any shares subject to options under the 2000 Plan and the 1996 Plan that were outstanding as of May 18, 2006, and that subsequently expire unexercised, up to a maximum of an additional 75.0 million shares. In addition, the Company's stockholders' approved amendments to the 2006 Plan that increased the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2006 Plan, thereby increasing the authorized share reserve by 30.0 million shares in May 2010 and 2011, respectively, and 25.0 million shares in May 2012. As of September 30, 2012, the 2006 Plan had 59.0 million shares subject to currently outstanding equity awards and 50.2 million shares available for future issuance.

In connection with certain past acquisitions, the Company assumed stock options and RSU awards under the stock plans of the acquired companies. The Company exchanged those awards for Juniper Networks' stock options and RSUs. As of September 30, 2012, stock options and RSUs representing approximately 1.2 million shares of common stock were outstanding under awards assumed through the Company's past acquisitions.

Stock Option Activities

Since 2006, the Company has granted stock option awards that have a maximum contractual life of seven years from the date of grant. Prior to 2006, stock option awards generally had a ten-year contractual life from the date of grant.

The following table summarizes the Company's stock option activity and related information as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 (in millions, except for per share amounts and years):

	Outstanding Opt	ions	
	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Exercise Price per Share	Weighted Average Aggregate Remaining Intrinsic Contractual Term Value (In Years)
Balance at January 1, 2012	38.6	\$23.98	,
Options granted	3.1	22.81	
Options canceled	(2.1	25.61	
Options exercised	(2.8) 10.84	

Options expired Balance at September 30, 2012	(1.1 35.7) 26.97 \$24.73	3.2	\$17.2
As of September 30, 2012: Vested or expected-to-vest options Exercisable options	34.6 27.4	\$24.58 \$23.59	3.2 2.6	\$17.1 \$15.4

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the Company's closing stock price on the last trading day of the period, which was \$17.11 per share as of September 30, 2012, and the exercise price multiplied by the number of related options. The pre-tax intrinsic value of options exercised, representing the difference between the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the date of the exercise and the exercise price of each option, was \$1.6 million and \$24.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively. The total fair value of vested options for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 was \$14.2 million and \$57.1 million, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units and Performance Share Awards Activities

RSUs generally vest over a period of three to four years from the date of grant and PSAs generally vest after three years provided that certain annual performance targets and other vesting criteria are met. Until vested, RSUs and PSAs do not have the voting and dividend participation rights of common stock and the shares underlying the awards are not considered issued and outstanding.

The following table summarizes the Company's RSU and PSA activity and related information as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 (in millions, except per share amounts and years):

	Outstanding RSUs and PSAs			
	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Grant-Date Fair Value per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (In Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Balance at January 1, 2012	19.6	\$30.27		
RSUs granted	7.8	20.83		
RSUs assumed	0.2	22.47		
PSAs granted (*)	2.2	23.07		
RSUs vested	(2.2)	28.10		
PSAs vested	(1.9)	18.02		
RSUs canceled	(1.5)	28.66		
PSAs canceled	(0.9)	32.50		
Balance at September 30, 2012	23.3	\$27.77	1.4	\$399.0
As of September 30, 2012: Vested and expected-to-vest RSUs and PSAs	18.8	\$27.56	1.3	\$322.4

The number of shares subject to PSAs granted represents the aggregate maximum number of shares that may be issued pursuant to the award over its full term. The aggregate number of shares subject to these PSAs that would be (*) issued if performance goals determined by the Compensation Committee are achieved at target is 0.9 million shares. Depending on achievement of such performance goals, the range of shares that could be issued under these awards is 0 to 2.2 million shares.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Shares Available for Grant

The following table presents the stock grant activity and the total number of shares available for grant under the 2006 Plan as of September 30, 2012 (in millions):

	Number of	
	Shares	
Balance at January 1, 2012	41.1	
Additional shares authorized for issuance	25.0	
RSUs and PSAs granted (1)	(21.0)
Options granted	(3.1)
RSUs and PSAs canceled (1)	5.0	
Options canceled (2)	2.1	
Options expired (2)	1.1	
Balance at September 30, 2012	50.2	

RSUs and PSAs with a per share or unit purchase price lower than 100% of the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the day of the grant under the 2006 Plan are counted against shares authorized under the plan as

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company's 2008 Purchase Plan is implemented in a series of offering periods, each six months in duration, or a shorter period as determined by the Board. Under the 2008 Purchase Plan, employees purchased approximately 1.9 million and 3.6 million shares at an average per share price of \$14.90 and \$16.26 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, and 1.4 million and 2.4 million shares at an average price of \$19.88 and \$21.53 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively.

As of September 30, 2012, approximately 9.5 million shares have been issued and 9.5 million shares remain available for future issuance under the 2008 Purchase Plan.

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had reserved an aggregate of approximately 118.7 million shares of common stock for future issuance under its equity incentive plans and the 2008 Purchase Plan.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The Company determines the fair value of its stock options utilizing the Black-Scholes-Merton ("BSM") option-pricing model, which incorporates various assumptions including volatility, risk-free interest rate, expected life, and dividend yield. The expected volatility is based on the implied volatility of market-traded options on the Company's common stock, adjusted for other relevant factors including historical volatility of the Company's common stock over the most

⁽¹⁾ two and one-tenth shares of common stock for each share subject to such award. The number of shares subject to PSAs granted represents the maximum number of shares that may be issued pursuant to the award over its full term.

⁽²⁾ Includes canceled or expired options under the 1996 Plan and the 2000 Plan that expired after May 18, 2006, which become available for grant under the 2006 Plan according to its terms.

recent period commensurate with the estimated expected life of the Company's stock options. The expected life of a stock option award is based on historical experience and on the terms and conditions of the stock awards granted to employees, as well as the potential effect from stock options that had not been exercised at the time. The Company determines the fair value of its RSUs and PSAs based upon the fair market value of the shares of the Company's common stock at the date of grant.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

The weighted average assumptions used and the resulting estimates of fair value for stock options and the employee stock purchase plan were:

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended September 3	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Stock Options:				
Volatility	46%	46%	46%	41%
Risk-free interest rate	0.7%	0.8%	0.8%	1.7%
Expected life (years)	4.2	4.1	4.2	4.3
Dividend yield	_	_	_	_
Weighted-average fair value per share	\$6.89	\$8.34	\$8.46	\$15.12
Employee Stock Purchase Plan:				
Volatility	42%	45%	47%	40%
Risk-free interest rate	0.1%	0.2%	0.1%	0.2%
Expected life (years)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5
Dividend yield			_	_
Weighted-average fair value per share	\$4.77	\$6.37	\$5.53	\$7.50

The Company expenses the cost of its stock options on a straight-line basis over the vesting period and expenses the cost of its RSUs ratably over the vesting period. With respect to PSAs, for the portion of the award attributable to each performance year, the Company recognizes PSA expense ratably over the remaining vesting period starting in the period in which the annual performance targets are set for each such performance year.

The Company's share-based compensation expense associated with stock options, employee stock purchases, RSUs, and PSAs was recorded in the following cost and expense categories (in millions):

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended September 30	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Cost of revenues - Product	\$1.2	\$1.2	\$3.5	\$3.4
Cost of revenues - Service	3.8	3.8	13.2	12.1
Research and development	26.0	26.5	80.3	75.4
Sales and marketing	21.4	20.6	64.3	53.0
General and administrative	6.7	8.4	24.7	25.7
Total	\$59.1	\$60.5	\$186.0	\$169.6

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense by award type (in millions):

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended September 30	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Stock options	\$14.3	\$18.8	\$47.1	\$58.4
RSUs and PSAs	39.7	35.6	122.3	93.6
Assumed RSUs	0.4	_	1.0	_
Employee stock purchase plan	4.7	4.6	15.6	13.2
Other acquisition-related compensation	_	1.5		4.4
Total	\$59.1	\$60.5	\$186.0	\$169.6

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

As of September 30, 2012, approximately \$81.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, related to unvested stock options will be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.3 years and approximately \$269.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, related to unvested RSUs and PSAs will be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.0 years.

401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a savings and retirement plan qualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "IRC"). Employees meeting the eligibility requirements, as defined under the IRC, may contribute up to the statutory limits each year. The Company has matched employee contributions since January 1, 2001, currently matching 25% of all eligible employee contributions. All matching contributions vest immediately. The Company's matching contributions to the plan totaled \$4.8 million and \$16.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, and \$3.9 million and \$13.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company's non-qualified deferred compensation ("NQDC") plan is an unfunded and unsecured deferred compensation arrangement. Under the NQDC plan, officers and other senior employees may elect to defer a portion of their compensation and contribute such amounts to one or more investment funds. The NQDC plan assets are included within short-term investments, and offsetting obligations are included within accrued compensation in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The investments are considered trading securities and are reported at fair value. The realized and unrealized holding gains and losses related to these investments are recorded in other expense, net, and the offsetting compensation expense is recorded as operating expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. The deferred compensation liability under the NQDC plan was approximately \$12.6 million and \$9.3 million as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. See Note 4, Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments, for additional information regarding the Company's NQDC plan.

Note 13. Segments

The Company's chief operating decision maker ("CODM") allocates resources and assesses performance based on financial information of the Company's divisions. In fiscal 2012, the Company reorganized its operations into two reportable segments principally by product families: PSD and SSD. As a result of the change, product families and services were organized within the two divisions based on homogeneity of products and technology.

To provide improved visibility and comparability, the Company reclassified segment operating results for 2011 to conform with the 2012 organizational realignments.

The Company's PSD segment primarily offers scalable routing and switching products that are used in service provider, enterprise, and public sector networks to control and direct network traffic from data centers, core, edge, aggregation, campus, Wide Area Networks ("WANs"), branch, and customer premise equipment level. The Company's PSD segment consists of routing, switching, and security/other products and services. Routing includes products and services from the ACX, E, M, MX, PTX and T Series. Switching primarily consists of products and services for EX Series and wireless local area network solutions, as well as QFabricTM. Security/other includes products and services from the branch SRX, branch firewall, and J Series, as well as the network application platform,

Junos® Space.

The Company's SSD segment offers solutions that meet a broad array of our customers' priorities, from protecting the users, applications and data on the network to providing network services across a distributed infrastructure. The SSD segment primarily consists of security/other and routing products and services. Security/other includes High-End SRX services and vGW Virtual Gateways, High-End Firewall virtual private network systems and appliances, secure socket layer virtual private network appliances, intrusion detection and prevention appliances, wide area network optimization platforms, and Junos Pulse. Routing primarily consists of Routing Services Software and Mobile Applications (such as MobileNextTM).

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

The CODM does not allocate to the Company's business segments certain operating expenses managed separately at the corporate level. Direct costs and operating expenses, such as standard cost of goods sold, research and development, and product marketing expenses, are generally applied to each segment. Indirect costs, such as manufacturing overhead and other cost of revenues, are allocated based on factors including headcount, usage, and revenue. Segment contribution margin is comprised of these direct costs and operating expenses, as well as these indirect costs. Corporate unallocated expenses includes: sales, marketing, general and administrative costs, share-based compensation, amortization of purchased intangible assets, restructuring and other charges, gains or losses on equity investments, other expense, net, income taxes, and certain other charges. Segment contribution margin excludes these corporate unallocated expenses.

The following table summarizes financial information for each segment used by the CODM (in millions):

The following those summarizes inhalician	Three Months Ended September 30,		,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Net revenues:				
PSD	\$892.9	\$879.8	\$2,588.6	\$2,695.3
SSD	225.4	226.0	636.0	632.7
Total net revenues	1,118.3	1,105.8	3,224.6	3,328.0
Segment contribution margin:				
PSD	356.1	381.8	1,011.9	1,214.3
SSD	99.8	94.5	256.2	250.3
Total segment contribution margin	455.9	476.3	1,268.1	1,464.6
Corporate unallocated expenses (1)	(266.5) (255.1	(794.2)	(755.4)
Amortization of purchased intangible assets (2)	(9.0) (6.7	(25.1)	(20.2)
Share-based compensation expense	(59.1) (60.5	(186.0)	(169.6)
Share-based payroll tax expense	(0.1) (0.2	(1.1)	(9.2)
Restructuring and other charges (3)	(83.4) (16.8	(88.6)	(15.6)
Acquisition-related and other charges (4)	(0.3) —	(1.2)	(9.3)
Other	5.3		5.3	
Total operating income	42.8	137.0	177.2	485.3
Other expense, net	(4.0) (15.9	(25.6)	(36.1)
Income before income taxes and noncontrolling interest	\$38.8	\$121.1	\$151.6	\$449.2

⁽¹⁾ Amount includes unallocated costs for global functions such as sales, marketing, and general and administrative.

⁽²⁾ Amount includes amortization expense of purchased intangible assets reported in operating expenses and in cost of revenues.

⁽³⁾ Amount includes restructuring and other charges reported in operating expenses and in cost of revenues.

⁽⁴⁾ Amount includes acquisition-related costs reported in operating expenses and in cost of revenues. Depreciation expense allocated to the PSD segment was \$30.6 million and \$88.2 million in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, and \$28.3 million and \$80.8 million in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively. Depreciation expense allocated to the SSD segment was \$8.5 million and \$24.6 million in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, and \$8.4 million and \$25.0 million in

the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

The Company attributes revenues to geographic region based on the customer's ship-to location. The following table shows net revenues by geographic region (in millions):

	Three Months	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended September 30.	
	2012	2011	2012	2011	
Americas:					
United States	\$507.6	\$502.3	\$1,513.6	\$1,552.3	
Other	52.7	54.2	165.3	164.6	
Total Americas	560.3	556.5	1,678.9	1,716.9	
Europe, Middle East, and Africa	321.3	311.3	927.7	940.2	
Asia Pacific	236.7	238.0	618.0	670.9	
Total	\$1,118.3	\$1,105.8	\$3,224.6	\$3,328.0	

During the three months ended September 30, 2012, no customers accounted for greater than 10% of net revenues. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Verizon Communications, Inc. accounted for 12.0% of net revenues. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of net revenues.

The Company tracks assets by physical location. The majority of the Company's assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents and investments, as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, were attributable to U.S. operations. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, gross property and equipment held in the U.S., as a percentage of total property and equipment, was approximately 82% and 80%, respectively. Although management reviews asset information on a corporate level and allocates depreciation expense by segment, the CODM does not review asset information on a segment basis.

Note 14. Income Taxes

The Company recorded a tax provision of \$22.0 million and \$60.8 million, or effective tax rates of 56.7% and 40.1% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively. The Company recorded a tax provision of \$37.4 million and \$120.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, or effective tax rates of 30.9% and 26.8%, respectively.

The effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, differ from the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the effect of changes in foreign earnings coupled with the impact of the restructuring charges in the period. The effective rates for the periods do not reflect the benefit of the federal R&D credit, which expired on December 31, 2011.

The effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, differ from the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the federal R&D credit and the benefit of earnings in foreign jurisdictions, which are subject to lower tax rates.

The gross unrecognized tax benefits increased by approximately \$9.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. In the same period, a benefit primarily related to expiration of statutes of limitation of approximately \$3.3 million, including interest and penalties, impacted the effective tax rate.

The Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") for the 2004 through 2009 tax years. The Company is also subject to two separate ongoing examinations by the India tax authorities for the 2004 tax year and 2004 through 2008 tax years, respectively. Additionally, the Company has not reached a final resolution with the IRS on an adjustment it proposed for the 1999 and 2000 tax years. The Company is not aware of any other

examination by taxing authorities in any other major jurisdictions in which it files income tax returns as of September 30, 2012.

In 2011, as part of the 2005 and 2006 IRS audit, the Company received a proposed adjustment related to its intercompany R&D cost sharing arrangement for the license of intangibles acquired in 2005. In 2009, as part of the 2004 IRS audit, the Company received a similar proposed adjustment related to the license of intangibles acquired in 2004.

In 2008, the Company received a proposed adjustment from the India tax authorities related to the 2004 tax year. In 2009, the India tax authorities commenced a separate investigation of our 2004 through 2008 tax returns and are disputing the Company's determination of taxable income due to the cost basis of certain fixed assets. The Company accrued \$4.6 million in penalties

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

and interest in 2009 related to this matter. The Company understands that the India tax authorities may issue an initial assessment that is substantially higher than this amount. As a result, in accordance with the administrative and judicial process in India, the Company may be required to make payments that are substantially higher than the amount accrued in order to ultimately settle this issue. The Company strongly believes that any assessment it may receive in excess of the amount accrued would be inconsistent with applicable India tax laws and intends to defend this position vigorously.

The Company is pursuing all available administrative procedures relative to the matters referenced above. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for any reasonably foreseeable outcomes related to these proposed adjustments and the ultimate resolution of these matters is unlikely to have a material effect on its consolidated financial condition or results of operations; however there is still a possibility that an adverse outcome of these matters could have a material effect on its consolidated financial condition and results of operations. For more information, see Note 16, Commitments and Contingencies, under the heading "IRS Notices of Proposed Adjustments."

The Company engages in continuous discussions and negotiations with tax authorities regarding tax matters in various jurisdictions. It is reasonably possible that the balance of the gross unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately \$2.5 million within the next twelve months due to lapses of applicable statutes of limitation in multiple jurisdictions that the Company operated in. However, at this time, the Company is unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate of the timing of payments related to the remaining unrecognized tax liabilities due to uncertainties in the timing of tax audit outcomes.

Note 15. Net Income per Share

The Company computed basic and diluted net income per share attributable to Juniper Networks common stockholders as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months End	ed September 30,
	2012	2011	2012	2011
Numerator:				
Net income attributable to Juniper	\$16.8	\$83.7	\$90.8	\$329.0
Networks	Ψ10.0	Ψ03.7	Ψ / 0.0	Ψ327.0
Denominator:				
Weighted-average shares used to compute	521.2	529.3	525.4	531.0
basic net income per share	321.2	327.3	323.4	331.0
Dilutive effect of employee stock awards	3.3	7.3	4.9	13.1
Weighted-average shares used to compute	524.5	536.6	530.3	544.1
diluted net income per share	321.3	330.0	330.3	544.1
Net income per share attributable to				
Juniper				
Networks common stockholders:				
Basic	\$0.03	\$0.16	\$0.17	\$0.62
Diluted	\$0.03	\$0.16	\$0.17	\$0.60

Basic net income per share is computed using net income available to common stockholders and the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per share is computed using net income available to common stockholders and the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive potential common shares consist of common shares

issuable upon exercise of stock options, employee stock purchase plan issuances, vesting of RSUs, and vesting of PSAs.

The Company excludes both outstanding stock options with exercise prices that are greater than the average market price and RSUs with grant date fair market value that are greater than the average market price from the calculation of diluted net income per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive. The Company includes the common shares underlying PSAs in the calculation of diluted net income per share when they become contingently issuable and excludes such shares when they are not contingently issuable. Potentially dilutive common shares of approximately 36.8 million and 33.0 million shares for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, and 29.8 million and 12.8 million shares for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively, were outstanding but were not included in the computation of diluted net income per share.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

The following table summarizes the Company's future principal contractual obligations as of September 30, 2012 (in millions):

	Total	Remainder of 2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	Thereafter	Other
Operating leases	\$280.6	\$15.9	\$52.1	\$45.6	\$37.2	\$28.6	\$101.2	\$
Purchase commitments	105.0	105.0		_	_	_		_
Tax liabilities	116.9	_	_	_	_	_	_	116.9
Long-term debt	1,000.0		_	_	_	300.0	700.0	
Interest payment on long-term debt	826.2	_	46.9	46.9	46.9	41.9	643.6	
Other contractual obligations	143.3	131.2	6.3	3.4	2.4	_	_	_
Total	\$2,472.0	\$252.1	\$105.3	\$95.9	\$86.5	\$370.5	\$1,444.8	\$116.9

Operating Leases

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases that expire at various times, the longest of which expires on November 30, 2022. Future minimum payments for non-cancelable operating leases totaled \$280.6 million as of September 30, 2012. Rent expense was \$15.7 million and \$47.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, and \$17.0 million and \$49.6 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively.

Purchase Commitments

In order to reduce manufacturing lead times and ensure adequate component supply, contract manufacturers utilized by the Company place non-cancelable, non-returnable ("NCNR") orders for components based on the Company's build forecasts. As of September 30, 2012, there were NCNR component orders placed by the contract manufacturers with a value of \$105.0 million. The contract manufacturers use the components to build products based on the Company's forecasts and customer purchase orders received by the Company. Generally, the Company does not own the components and title to the products transfers from the contract manufacturers to the Company and immediately to the Company's customers upon delivery at a designated shipment location. If the components remain unused or the products remain unsold for specified periods, the Company may incur carrying charges or obsolete materials charges for components that the contract manufacturers purchased to build products to meet the Company's forecast or customer orders. As of September 30, 2012, the Company had accrued \$18.5 million based on its estimate of such charges.

Tax Liabilities

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had \$116.9 million included in long-term liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for unrecognized tax positions. At this time, the Company is unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate of the timing of payments related to the \$116.9 million in liability due to uncertainties in

the timing of tax audit outcomes.

Long-Term Debt and Interest Payment on Long-Term Debt

As of September 30, 2012, the Company held long-term debt consisting of senior notes with a carrying value of \$999.1 million. Of these Notes, \$300.0 million will mature in 2016 and bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.10%, \$300.0 million will mature in 2021 and bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.60%, and \$400.0 million will mature in 2041 and bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.95%. Interest on the Notes is payable semiannually. See Note 10, Long-Term Debt and Financing, for further discussion of the Company's long-term debt.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Other Contractual Obligations

As of September 30, 2012, other contractual obligations primarily consisted of \$48.7 million in indemnity-related and service related escrows, required by certain asset purchases and acquisitions completed in 2005, 2010 and 2012, \$81.1 million in campus build-out obligations, and other miscellaneous commitments.

Guarantees

The Company enters into agreements with customers that contain indemnification provisions relating to potential situations where claims could be alleged that the Company's products infringe the intellectual property rights of a third-party. The Company also has financial guarantees consisting of guarantees of product and service performance, guarantees related to third-party customer-financing arrangements, customs and duties guarantees, and standby letters of credit for certain lease facilities. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company had \$19.5 million and \$19.9 million, respectively, in bank guarantees and standby letters of credit related to these financial guarantees.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in disputes, litigation, and other legal actions, including, but not limited to, the matters described below. The Company is aggressively defending its current litigation matters, and while there can be no assurances and the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable, the Company currently believes that there are no existing claims or proceedings that are likely to have a material adverse effect on its financial position. There are many uncertainties associated with any litigation, and these actions or other third-party claims against the Company may cause the Company to incur costly litigation and/or substantial settlement charges. In addition, the resolution of any intellectual property litigation may require the Company to make royalty payments, which could adversely affect gross margins in future periods. If any of those events were to occur, the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows could be adversely affected. The actual liability in any such matters may be materially different from the Company's estimates, if any, which could result in the need to adjust the liability and record additional expenses. Unless otherwise noted below, during the period presented, we have not: recorded any accrual for loss contingencies associated with such legal proceedings; determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable or reasonably possible; or determined that the amount or range of any possible loss is reasonably estimable.

2011 Federal Securities Class Action

On August 15, 2011, a purported securities class action lawsuit, captioned City of Royal Oak Retirement System v. Juniper Networks, Inc., et al., Case No. 11-cv-04003-LHK, was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California naming the Company and certain of its officers and directors as defendants. The complaint alleges that the defendants made false and misleading statements regarding the Company's business and prospects. Plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of monetary damages on behalf of the purported class. On January 9, 2012 the Court appointed City of Omaha Police and Fire Retirement System and City of Bristol Pension Fund as lead plaintiffs. Lead plaintiffs allege that defendants made false and misleading statements about the Company's business and future prospects, and failed to adequately disclose the impact of certain changes in accounting rules. Lead plaintiffs purport to assert claims for violations of Sections 10(b), 20(a) and 20A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 10b-5 on behalf of those who purchased or otherwise acquired Juniper Networks' common stock between July 20, 2010 and July 26, 2011, inclusive. On March 14, 2012, Defendants filed motions to dismiss lead plaintiffs' amended complaint. On July 23, 2012, the Court issued an order dismissing the action and giving lead

plaintiffs leave to file an amended complaint. Lead plaintiffs filed their second amended complaint on August 20, 2012. Defendants filed a motion to dismiss the second amended complaint on September 17, 2012, and lead plaintiffs filed their opposition on October 22, 2012. Defendants' reply brief is due November 8, 2012. A hearing on the motion to dismiss is scheduled for January 31, 2013.

2011 California State Derivative Lawsuits

Between August 22 and September 9, 2011, four purported shareholder derivative actions were filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Santa Clara, naming certain of the Company's officers and directors as defendants. The Company is named only as a nominal defendant in the actions. The actions were consolidated as In re Juniper Networks, Inc. Shareholder Litigation, Case No. 1-11-CV-207701 (Lead Case), by order dated September 12, 2011. The complaints are

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

generally based upon the disclosures and alleged omissions challenged in the securities class action. The complaints purport to assert claims against the defendants for breach of fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, and waste of corporate assets. The complaints seek, among other relief, damages in an unspecified amount, restitution, and attorneys' fees and costs. On March 8, 2012, the Company filed a motion to stay the action until resolution of the federal securities class action discussed above, and also filed a demurrer seeking to dismiss the action for the reason that plaintiffs lack standing. The plaintiffs filed oppositions to both motions on April 5, 2012. Defendants filed reply briefs on May 7, 2012. At a hearing on July 27, 2012, the Court ordered that the actions be stayed until such time as the federal court issues an order denying a motion to dismiss in the securities class action, City of Omaha Police and Fire Retirement System v. Juniper Networks, Inc. et al., Case No. CV-11-4003-LHK. The Court deferred deciding the demurrer pending the stay.

2011 Federal Derivative Lawsuit

On September 27, 2011 and December 28, 2011, two purported shareholder derivative actions, captioned Ratinova v. Johnson, et al., Case No. 11-cv-04792 and Lisa E. Coppola, ERA v. Johnson, et al., Case No. 11-cv-06667, respectively, were filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California naming certain of the Company's officers and directors as defendants. The Company is named only as a nominal defendant in the action. Like the state derivative actions, the federal derivative lawsuits are generally based upon the disclosures and alleged omissions challenged in the securities class action. The complaints purport to assert claims against the defendants for breach of fiduciary duties and unjust enrichment. The complaints seek, among other relief, damages in an unspecified amount, restitution, and attorneys' fees and costs. By order dated January 30, 2012, the Court consolidated the actions as In re Juniper Networks, Inc. Shareholder Derivative Litigation, Master File No. 11-cv-04792-LHK. On February 3, 2012, the parties filed a stipulation in which the parties requested that the Court stay the action until such time as the Court entered an order denying a motion to dismiss in the related federal securities class action described above. On February 6, 2012, the Court granted the parties' stipulation.

IRS Notices of Proposed Adjustments

In 2011, as a result of its audit of the Company's U.S. federal income tax returns for the 2005 and 2006 fiscal years, the IRS issued a Preliminary Notice of Deficiency ("PNOD") regarding the Company's transfer pricing transactions under its intercompany R&D cost sharing arrangement related to the license of intangibles acquired in 2005. The asserted changes would affect the Company's income tax liabilities for tax years subsequent to 2004. Because of the PNOD, the estimated incremental tax liabilities for all relative tax years would be approximately \$92 million, excluding interest and penalties. The Company has filed a protest to the proposed deficiency with the IRS.

In 2009, the Company received a PNOD from the IRS claiming that the Company owes additional taxes, plus interest and possible penalties, for the 2004 tax year based on a transfer pricing transaction related to the license of acquired intangibles under an intercompany R&D cost sharing arrangement. The asserted changes to the Company's 2004 tax year would affect the Company's income tax liabilities in tax years subsequent to 2003. In addition, the Company has not reached a final resolution with the IRS on an adjustment the IRS proposed for the 1999 and 2000 tax years. Because of the PNOD, the estimated incremental tax liability would be approximately \$807 million, excluding interest and penalties. The Company has filed a protest to the PNOD, which is under review by the Appeals Division of the IRS.

The Company strongly believes the IRS' position with regard to transfer pricing transactions for the Company's 2004 through 2006 fiscal years are inconsistent with applicable tax laws, judicial precedent and existing Treasury regulations, and that the Company's previously reported income tax provisions for the years in question are

appropriate. However, there can be no assurance that these matters will be resolved in the Company's favor. Regardless of whether these matters are resolved in the Company's favor, the final resolution of these matters could be expensive and time-consuming to defend and/or settle. While the Company believes it has provided adequately for these matters, there is still a possibility that an adverse outcome from these matters could have a material effect on its results of operations and financial condition.

In September 2008, as part of its ongoing audit of the U.S. federal income tax return for the 2004 fiscal year, the IRS issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment ("NOPA") regarding the Company's business credits. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for any reasonable foreseeable outcome related to this proposed adjustment.

The Company is also under routine examination by certain state and non-U.S. tax authorities. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for any reasonably foreseeable outcome related to these audits.

Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) (Unaudited)

Note 17. Subsequent Events

Stock Repurchases

Subsequent to September 30, 2012, through the filing of this Report, the Company repurchased 9.9 million shares of its common stock, for \$168.5 million at an average purchase price of \$17.03 per share, under the 2012 Stock Repurchase Program. Repurchases of 8.8 million shares were settled prior to the filing of this Report and the remaining shares will be settled after the filing date. Under the 2012 Stock Repurchase Program, the Company has \$649.7 million authorized funds remaining as of the filing date. Purchases under the Company's stock repurchase program are subject to a review of the circumstances in place at the time and will be made from time to time as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements. This program may be discontinued at any time.

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q ("Report"), including the "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," contains forward-looking statements regarding future events and the future results of Juniper Networks, Inc. ("we," "us," "Juniper Networks," or the "Company") that are based on our current expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections about our business, our results of operations, the industry in which we operate, and the beliefs and assumptions of our management. Words such as "expects," "anticipates," "targets," "goals," "projects," "would," "could," "intends," "plans," "believes," "seeks," "estimates," variations of such words, and similar expres intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are only predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in this Report under the section entitled "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part II and elsewhere, and in other reports we file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), specifically our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. While forward-looking statements are based on reasonable expectations of our management at the time that they are made, given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to revise or update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason, except as required by applicable law.

The following discussion is based upon our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 1, Item I, of this Report, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"). In the course of operating our business, we routinely make decisions as to the timing of the payment of invoices, the collection of receivables, the manufacturing and shipment of products, the fulfillment of orders, the purchase of supplies, and the building of inventory and spare parts, among other matters. Each of these decisions has some impact on the financial results for any given period. In making these decisions, we consider various factors, including contractual obligations, customer satisfaction, competition, internal and external financial targets and expectations, and financial planning objectives.

To aid in understanding our operating results for the periods covered by this Report, we have provided a summary of our business and market environment along with a financial results overview. These sections should be read in conjunction with the more detailed discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations in this Item 2, our "Risk Factors" section included in Item 1A of Part II, and our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes included in Item 1 of Part I of this Report, as well as our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes included in Item 8 of Part II of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

Business and Market Environment

At Juniper Networks, we design, develop, and sell products and services that together provide our customers with a high-performance network infrastructure built on simplicity, security, openness, and scale. We serve the high-performance networking requirements of global service providers, enterprises, governments, and research and public sector organizations that view the network as critical to their success. Our core competencies in hardware systems, silicon design, network architecture, and our open cross-network software platform are helping customers achieve superior performance, greater choice and flexibility while reducing overall total cost of ownership.

We do business in three geographic regions: Americas, Europe, Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"), and Asia Pacific ("APAC"). Beginning in the first quarter of 2012, we aligned our organizational structure to focus on our platform and

software strategy, which resulted in two business segments: Platform Systems Division ("PSD") and Software Solutions Division ("SSD"). Our PSD segment primarily offers scalable routing and switching products that are used in service provider, enterprise, and public sector networks to control and direct network traffic between data centers, core, edge, aggregation, campus, wireless local area network ("WLAN"), branch, and customer premise equipment. Our SSD segment offers solutions that address a broad array of our customers' priorities, from protecting the users, applications, and data on the network to providing network services across a distributed infrastructure. Both segments offer worldwide services, including technical support and professional services, as well as educational and training programs to our customers.

We remain focused on a common vision for the new network and we believe that the organizational structure we have in place will effectively drive our innovative portfolio and support our customers' next-generation network requirements. Together, our high-performance product and service offerings help our customers to convert legacy networks that provide commoditized services into more valuable assets that provide differentiation, value, increased performance, reliability, and security to end-users. We remain dedicated to uncovering new ideas and innovations that will serve the exponentially increasing demands of

Table of Contents

the networked world, and we will endeavor to continue to build solutions that center on simplification, automation, and open innovation.

In the third quarter of 2012, we continued to experience an uncertain global macroeconomic environment in which our customers exercised care and conservatism in their investment prioritization and project deployments. We expect that our customers will continue to remain cautious with their capital spending in the near term. Nevertheless, we are focused on executing our strategy to address the market trends of mobile Internet and cloud computing and we continue to see positive long-term fundamentals for high-performance networking.

In the third quarter of 2012, we saw increased momentum with our new product offerings, including new customer adoption of our QFabric ("QFX") solutions, T4000 Core Routers, PTX Series Packet Transport switches, and ACX Series Universal Access Routers, which began shipping in the third quarter of 2012. We also continued to take market share with new customer wins with the EX Series, MX Series, SRX and mobile security solutions. Additionally, we announced industry performance-leading MX2020 and MX2010 3D Universal Edge Routers and new JunosV App Engine, which enable service providers to transform the network edge into a powerful platform for rapid service deployment. We also launched the Junos Content Encore with MX Application Services Modular Line Card, which enables the delivery of premium content services over broadband connections across multiple device types. Furthermore, we announced a technology partnership in wide area network ("WAN") optimization, application delivery, and mobility with Riverbed Technology, which will enable more secure, efficient delivery of applications across devices, networks and clouds.

During the third quarter of 2012, we initiated a restructuring plan (the "2012 Restructuring Plan") to bring our cost structure more in line with our long-term financial and strategic model. The 2012 Restructuring Plan consists of workforce reductions, facility consolidations or closures, and supply chain and procurement efficiencies. In connection with the 2012 Restructuring Plan, we recorded operating expenses of \$31.0 million for workforce reductions, facility consolidations or closures, and other charges during the third quarter of 2012. We also recorded certain inventory charges of \$36.3 million and intangible asset impairment charges of \$16.1 million to cost of revenues. We expect to incur charges related to the 2012 Restructuring Plan through the end of fiscal 2013. We continue to anticipate that our restructuring and cost reduction activities will result in approximately \$150.0 million in cost reduction savings, with the majority in operating expenses, and to a lesser extent, in both product and service cost of revenues for the full year 2013, in comparison to our the current full year levels. See Note 9, Restructuring and Other Charges, in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Report, for further discussion of our restructuring activities.

Financial Results Overview

Our financial highlights for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 were as follows (in millions, except per share amounts and percentages):

	Three Mo	ont	hs Ended	Sep	tember 30	,	Nine Months Ended September 30,								
	2012		2011	2011 \$ C		%Change		2012		2011		\$ Change	%Change		
Net revenues	\$1,118.3		\$1,105.8		\$12.5	1	%	\$3,224.6)	\$3,328.0		\$(103.4)	(3)%	
Operating income	42.8		137.0		\$(94.2)	(69)%	\$177.2		\$485.3		\$(308.1)	(63)%	
Percentage of net revenues	3.8	%	12.4	%				5.5	%	14.6	%				
Net income attributable															
to	\$16.8		\$83.7		\$(66.9)	(80)%	\$90.8		\$329.0		\$(238.2)	(72)%	
Juniper Networks															
Percentage of net revenues	1.5	%	7.6	%				2.8	%	9.9	%				

Net income per share attributable to Juniper Networks common stockholders:

Basic	\$0.03	\$0.16	\$(0.13) (81)% \$0.17	\$0.62	\$(0.45) (73)%
Diluted	\$0.03	\$0.16	\$(0.13) (81)% \$0.17	\$0.60	\$(0.43) (72)%

Net Revenues: During the three months ended September 30, 2012, we experienced net revenue growth in EMEA and the Americas as well as the service provider market, offset by declines in APAC and the enterprise market compared to the same period in 2011. The slight year-over-year increase in our net revenues during the three months ended September 30, 2012, was primarily due to an increase in service revenue from strong contract renewals and an increase from the sales of our switching products, offset in part by the decline in sales of our core and edge legacy routing products. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we experienced a decline in net revenues across all

Table of Contents

regions as well as across both the service provider and enterprise markets compared to the same period in 2011. The year-over-year decrease in our net revenues during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, was primarily due to a decline in sales of our core and edge legacy routing products, partially offset by an increase in our service revenue, switching products and legacy high end firewall products.

Operating Income: Our operating income decreased as a percentage of net revenues during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to restructuring and other associated charges of \$83.4 million and \$88.6 million recorded during three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, related to workforce reduction activities, facility closures, and asset write-downs. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, out of period adjustments related to prototype development costs were recorded which increased research and development expense by \$18.6 million.

Net Income Attributable to Juniper Networks and Net Income Per Share Attributable to Juniper Networks Common Stockholders: The decrease in net income attributable to Juniper Networks during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, reflects the lower operating income discussed above.

Operating Cash Flows: Operating cash flows decreased during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to lower net income, higher taxes paid, timing of payments to our vendors, and an increase in inventory purchases.

Book-to-Bill: Book-to-bill was greater than one as of September 30, 2012 and was one as of December 31, 2011.

Deferred Revenue: Total deferred revenue increased by \$25.9 million to \$992.9 million as of September 30, 2012, compared to \$967.0 million as of December 31, 2011, primarily due to an increase in deferred product revenue driven by undelivered product commitments and other product deferrals. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in deferred service revenue driven by timing of revenue recognition, offset by service contracts renewal.

Stock Repurchase Plan Activity: Under our stock repurchase programs, we repurchased approximately 13.9 million shares of our common stock in the open market at an average price of \$18.00 per share for an aggregate purchase price of \$250.0 million during the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 21.3 million shares of our common stock at an average price of \$18.60 per share for an aggregate purchase price of \$395.6 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make judgments, assumptions, and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the condensed consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including those related to sales returns, pricing credits, warranty costs, allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of long-term assets, especially goodwill and intangible assets, contract manufacturer exposures for carrying and obsolete material charges, assumptions used in the valuation of share-based compensation, and litigation. These estimates and assumptions are based on current facts, historical experience, and various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances to determine reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. To the extent there are material differences between our estimates and the actual results, our future consolidated results of operations may be affected. For further information about our accounting policies and estimates, see Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

An accounting policy is considered to be critical if the nature of the estimates or assumptions is material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly uncertain matters or the susceptibility of such matters to change, and the effect of the estimates and assumptions on financial condition or operating performance is material. The accounting policies we believe to reflect our more significant estimates, judgments and assumptions and are most critical to understanding and evaluating our reported financial results are as follows:

Revenue Recognition;

Contract Manufacturer Liabilities;

Warranty Costs;

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets;

Table of Contents

Share-Based Compensation;

Income Taxes; and

Loss Contingencies.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, there were no significant changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates as compared to the critical accounting policies and estimates disclosed in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in Part II, Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Report, for a full description of recent accounting pronouncements, including the actual and expected dates of adoption and estimated effects on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Results of Operations

The following table presents product and service net revenues (in millions, except percentages):

	Three Mo	ont	hs Ended	Sep	tember 30	,	Nine Months Ended September 30,							
	2012		2011		\$ Change	% Change		2012		2011		\$ Change	% Chang	ge
Product	\$838.2		\$861.9		\$(23.7)	(3)%	\$2,414.7		\$2,630.8		\$(216.1)	(8)%
Percentage of net revenues	75.0	%	77.9	%				74.9	%	79.1	%			
Service	280.1		243.9		36.2	15	%	809.9		697.2		112.7	16	%
Percentage of net revenues	25.0	%	22.1	%				25.1	%	20.9	%			
Total net revenues	\$1,118.3		\$1,105.8		\$12.5	1	%	\$3,224.6		\$3,328.0		\$(103.4)	(3)%

The decrease in product revenues during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, was primarily due to decline in sales of our core and edge legacy routing products, partially offset by an increase in our switching products during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, and our legacy high end firewall products during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in the 2011. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the increase in service revenue was primarily driven by strong contract renewals compared to the same periods in the 2011.

Net Revenues by Market and Customer

The following table presents net revenues by market (in millions, except percentages):

	Three Months Ended September 30,									Nine Months Ended September 30,							
	2012		2011		\$ Change	;	% Chang	ge	2012		2011		\$ Chang	ge	% Cha	nge	
Service provider	\$705.2		\$685.0		\$20.2		3	%	\$2,071.8	3	\$2,156.6		\$(84.8)	(4)%	
Percentage of net revenues	63.1	%	61.9	%					64.2	%	64.8	%					
Enterprise	413.1		420.8		(7.7)	(2)%	1,152.8		1,171.4		(18.6)	(2)%	
Percentage of net revenues	36.9	%	38.1	%					35.8	%	35.2	%					

Total net revenues \$1,118.3 \$1,105.8 \$12.5 1 % \$3,224.6 \$3,328.0 \$(103.4) (3)%

We sell our high-performance network products and service offerings from both our PSD and SSD segments to two primary markets: service provider and enterprise. Determination of which market a particular revenue transaction relates to is based primarily upon the customer's industrial classification code, but may also include subjective factors such as the intended use of the product. The service provider market generally includes wireline, wireless, and cable operators, as well as major Internet content and application providers, including those that provide social networking and search engine services. The enterprise market generally comprises businesses; federal, state, and local governments; and research and education institutions.

Table of Contents

Net revenues from sales to the service provider market increased during the three months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to increased demand from some our content service providers in the Americas, partially offset by a decrease in sales in our APAC regions. Net revenues from sales to the service provider market decreased during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to reduced routing purchases by some of our international and content service providers.

Net revenues generated from the enterprise market decreased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to lower revenue in federal and financial services compared to a strong third quarter in the prior year.

During the three months ended September 30, 2012, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Verizon Communications, Inc. accounted for 12.0% of net revenues. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues.

Net Revenues by Geographic Region

The following table presents net revenues by geographic region (in millions, except percentages):

8 1	Three Months Ended September 30,									Nine Months Ended September 30,						
	2012		2011		\$ Change		% Chang	ge	2012		2011		\$ Chang	ge	% Chan	ge
Americas:																
United States	\$507.6		\$502.3		\$5.3		1	%	\$1,513.6)	\$1,552.3		\$(38.7)	(2)%
Other	52.7		54.2		(1.5)	(3)%	165.3		164.6		0.7		_	%
Total Americas	560.3		556.5		3.8		1	%	1,678.9		1,716.9		(38.0)	(2)%
Percentage of net revenues	50.1	%	50.4	%					52.0	%	51.6	%				
EMEA	321.3		311.3		10.0		3	%	927.7		940.2		(12.5)	(1)%
Percentage of net revenues	28.7	%	28.1	%					28.8	%	28.3	%				
APAC	236.7		238.0		(1.3)	(1)%	618.0		670.9		(52.9)	(8)%
Percentage of net revenues	21.2	%	21.5	%					19.2	%	20.1	%				
Total net revenues	\$1,118.3	,	\$1,105.8		\$12.5		1	%	\$3,224.6)	\$3,328.0)	\$(103.4	!)	(3)%

Net revenues in the Americas increased during the three months ended September 30, 2012, primarily due to an increase in sales to certain service providers in the United States compared to the same period in 2011. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, net revenues in the Americas decreased primarily due to overall weakness in enterprise markets compared to the same period in 2011.

The increase in net revenues in EMEA for the three months ended September 30, 2012 reflected increased sales to enterprise customers. For the three months ended September 30, 2012, the increases were primarily in Eastern Europe, partially offset by decreased sales to the United Kingdom and Germany compared to the same period in 2011. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the decrease in net revenues in EMEA compared to the same period in 2011 was primarily due to decreased sales in the United Kingdom, Sweden, Germany and Spain, partially offset by increased revenue from a top service provider in Eastern Europe, which spans a broad range of our product portfolio.

The decrease in net revenues in APAC during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, was primarily due to a decrease in sales to a certain service provider customer in Japan as a

result of a large product deployment that occurred during the first nine months of 2011.

Table of Contents

Gross Margins

The following table presents gross margins (in millions, except percentages):

	Three M	Three Months Ended September 30,						Nine Mo						
	2012		2011		\$ Change	% Chang	ge.	2012		2011		\$ Change	% Chang	ge.
Gross margin: Product gross margin	\$503.5		\$575.3		\$(71.8)	(12)%	\$1,506.9)	\$1,786.1		\$(279.2)	(16)%
Percentage of product revenues	60.1	%	66.7	%				62.4	%	67.9	%			
Service gross margin	170.3		136.3		34.0	25	%	468.9		383.6		85.3	22	%
Percentage of service revenues	60.8	%	55.9	%				57.9	%	55.0	%			
Total gross margin	\$673.8		\$711.6		\$(37.8)	(5)%	\$1,975.8	3	\$2,169.7		\$(193.9)	(9)%
Percentage of net	60.3	%	64.4	%				61.3	%	65.2	%			

Product gross margin percentage decreased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to a \$36.3 million inventory charge related to component inventory held in excess of forecasted demand and intangible asset impairment charges of \$16.1 million, a shift in product mix to lower margin products, and a shift in geographical mix.

Service gross margin percentage increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to higher service revenue, as well as a reduction in costs as a result of our effort to maintain cost efficiencies.

Operating Expenses

The following table presents operating expenses (in millions, except percentages):

	Three M	Three Months Ended September 30,								Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	2012		2011		\$ Change	Ģ	% Cha	nge	2012		2011		\$ Change	% Chang	ge
Research and development	\$288.2		\$257.1		\$31.1	1	12	%	\$826.5		\$776.3		\$50.2	6	%
Percentage of net revenues	25.8	%	23.2	%					25.6	%	23.3	%			
Sales and marketing	261.0		254.9		6.1	2	2	%	778.2		747.9		30.3	4	%
Percentage of net revenues	23.3	%	23.1	%					24.2	%	22.5	%			
General and administrative	49.4		44.5		4.9	1	11	%	152.9		133.6		19.3	14	%
Percentage of net revenues	4.4	%	4.0	%					4.8	%	4.0	%			
Amortization of purchased intangible assets	1.2		1.3		(0.1) ((8)%	3.6		4.1		(0.5)	(12)%
Percentage of net revenues	0.1	%	0.2	%					0.1	%	0.1	%			
	31.0		16.8		14.2	8	34	%	36.2		15.6		20.6	132	%

]	Restructuring and other															
(charges															
]	Percentage of net	20	01	1.5	%				1 1	07	0.5	07				
1	revenues	2.8	%	1.5	%				1.1	%	0.5	%				
4	Acquisition-related and other charges	0.3				0.3	N/M		1.2		6.8		(5.6)	(82)%
	Percentage of net revenues		%		%				_	%	0.2	%				
,	Total operating expenses	\$631.1		\$574.6		\$56.5	10	%	\$1,798.6		\$1,684.3		\$114.3		7	%
	Percentage of net revenues	56.4	%	52.0	%				55.8	%	50.6	%				

N/M = not meaningful

Research and development expense increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to an increase in personnel expense as we continue to invest in new product innovation and expand our product portfolio. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, out of period adjustments related to prototype development costs were recorded which increased research and development expense by \$18.6 million.

Table of Contents

Sales and marketing expenses increased marginally during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to an increase in personnel related expenses, partially offset by lower commissions during the nine months of 2012.

General and administrative expenses increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to an increase in outside professional services, which included legal and consulting fees to support our financial-related initiatives.

Amortization of purchased intangible assets decreased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily due to certain intangible assets which were fully amortized in 2011, partially offset by the addition of intangible assets from acquisitions completed during the first quarter of 2012.

Restructuring and other charges increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 due to our 2012 Restructuring Plan. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, we recorded \$29.1 million in severance charges and \$0.4 million in other charges in connection with the 2012 Restructuring Plan. We also recorded \$1.5 million in facilities-related charges for our other restructuring plans. In connection with the 2012 Restructuring Plan, we expect to record aggregate future charges of approximately \$20.0 million through 2013, consisting of approximately \$4.0 million and \$16.0 million related to the workforce reductions and facility closures and other charges, respectively.

Acquisition-related charges increased during the three months ended September 30, 2012 and decreased during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to same periods in 2011. The increase during the three months ended September 30, 2012 was primarily due to expenses incurred for acquisitions completed during 2012. The decrease during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was primarily due to higher acquisition-related costs for our acquisitions completed during the fourth quarter of 2010 and during the first quarter of 2011 as compared to the most recent periods. See Note 3, Business Combinations, in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Report, for further discussion of these acquisitions.

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation expense associated with stock options, employee stock purchases, restricted stock units ("RSUs"), and performance share awards ("PSAs") was recorded in the following cost and expense categories (in millions, except percentages):

	Three Mor	ths Ended S	Septembe	30,	Nine Months Ended September 30,						
	2012	2011	\$ Change		% Char	nge	2012	2011	\$ Change	%	Change
Cost of revenues - Product	\$1.2	\$1.2	\$ —			%	\$3.5	\$3.4	\$0.1	3	%
Cost of revenues - Service	3.8	3.8				%	13.2	12.1	1.1	9	%
Research and development	26.0	26.5	(0.5))	(2)%	80.3	75.4	4.9	6	%
Sales and marketing	21.4	20.6	0.8		4	%	64.3	53.0	11.3	21	%
General and administrative	6.7	8.4	(1.7))	(20)%	24.7	25.7	(1.0)	(4)%
Total	\$59.1	\$60.5	\$(1.4))	(2)%	\$186.0	\$169.6	\$16.4	10	%

Share-based compensation expense decreased during the three months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to a decrease in option awards and performance based awards. The decrease was partially offset by higher RSU awards granted during the three months ended September 30, 2012. Share-based compensation expense increased during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to higher RSU awards granted and a change in standard vesting terms of those awards granted during the nine months of 2012.

Effect of Foreign Currency

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, foreign currency fluctuations were not material.

Table of Contents

Other Expense, Net and Income Tax Provision

The following table presents other expense, net and income tax provision (in millions, except percentages):

	Three Months Ended September 30,							Nine Months Ended September 30,						
	2012		2011		\$ Change	% Chang	ge	2012		2011		\$ Change	% Cha	nge
Interest income	\$2.6		\$2.2		\$0.4	18	%	\$8.3		\$7.2		\$1.1	15	%
Interest expense	(12.8)	(13.9)	1.1	(8)%	(40.6)	(35.6)	(5.0)	14	%
Other	6.2		(4.2)	10.4	248	%	6.7		(7.7)	14.4	187	%
Total other expense, ne	et\$(4.0)	\$(15.9)	\$11.9	(75)%	\$(25.6)	\$(36.1)	\$10.5	(29)%
Percentage of net revenues	(0.4)%	(1.4)%				(0.8)%	(1.1)%			
Income tax provision Effective tax rate	\$22.0 56.7	%	\$37.4 30.9	%	\$(15.4)	(41)%	\$60.8 40.1	%	\$120.4 26.8	%	\$(59.6)	(50)%

N/M = not meaningful

Interest income primarily includes interest income from our cash, cash equivalents, and investments. Interest income increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 as compared to the same periods in the prior year, primarily due to a higher balance of long-term investments yielding higher interest. Interest expense primarily consists of interest from our long-term debt and customer financing arrangements. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, the decrease in interest expense compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily due to the capitalization of interest relating to our campus build-out. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the increase in interest expense compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily due to the issuance of our debt near the end of the first quarter of 2011. Other typically consists of investment and foreign exchange gains and losses and other non-operational income and expense items. As compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the increase in Other was primarily due to a net gains on privately-held investments of \$5.8 million and \$6.6 million recorded during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, partially offset by certain legal expenses of \$1.4 million and \$6.8 million recognized during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively, that did not recur in 2012.

The effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, differ from the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the effect of changes in foreign earnings coupled with the impact of the restructuring charges in the period. The effective rates for the periods do not reflect the benefit of the federal R&D credit, which expired on December 31, 2011. The effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 differ from the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the federal R&D credit and the benefit of earnings in foreign jurisdictions, which are subject to lower tax rates.

For a further explanation of our income tax provision, see Note 14, Income Taxes, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Report.

Table of Contents

Segment Information

For a description of the products and services for each segment, see Note 13, Segments, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item I of Part I of this Report.

Platform Systems Division Segment

·	Three Mor	ths Ended So	eptember 3	0,	Nine Month			
	2012	2011	\$ Change	% Change	2012	2011	\$ Change	% Change
	(in million	s except perc	entages)		(in millions	except perce	ntages)	
PSD product revenues:								
Routing	\$488.1	\$524.2	\$(36.1)	(7)%	\$1,433.1	\$1,687.6	\$(254.5)	(15)%
Switching	145.6	122.2	23.4	19 %	409.0	339.9	69.1	20 %
Security/Other	47.8	53.4	(5.6)	(10)%	135.9	158.6	(22.7)	(14)%
Total PSD product revenues	681.5	699.8	(18.3)	(3)%	1,978.0	2,186.1	(208.1)	(10)%
PSD service revenues	211.4	180.0	31.4	17 %	610.6	509.2	101.4	20 %
Total PSD revenues	\$892.9	\$879.8	\$13.1	1 %	\$2,588.6	\$2,695.3	\$(106.7)	(4)%
PSD contribution margi	n\$356.1	\$381.8	\$(25.7)	(7)%	\$1,011.9	\$1,214.3	\$(202.4)	(17)%
Percentage of PSD revenues	39.9 %	43.4 %			39.1 %	45.1 %		

^(*) A reconciliation of total segment operating income to income before taxes and noncontrolling interest can be found in Note 13, Segments, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item I of this Report.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, PSD product revenues decreased compared to the same periods in 2011, due to lower spending by our international customers and content service provider customers in all geographies. The decrease was primarily attributable to the decline in sales of our core and edge legacy routing products, partially offset by the increase in the sale of our switching products.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, PSD service revenues increased compared to the same periods in 2011. The increase was mainly attributable to stronger contract renewal on support services.

PSD contribution margin as a percent of PSD revenues decreased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011, primarily attributable to product mix due to higher volume of lower margin products, geographical mix, and out of period adjustments related to prototype development costs that were recorded which increased research and development expense by \$18.6 million.

Software Solutions Division Segment

	Three Mon	ths Ended Se	eptember 3	80,	Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	2012	2011	\$ Change	% Change	2012	2011	\$ Change	% Ch	ange	
	(in millions	s except perc	entages)		(in millions	s except perc	entages)			
SSD product revenues:										
Security/Other	\$129.9	\$138.0	\$(8.1)	(6)%	\$369.6	\$359.9	\$9.7	3	%	
Routing	26.8	24.2	2.6	11 %	67.2	84.9	(17.7)	(21)%	
Total SSD product	156.7	162.2	(5.5)	(3)%	436.8	444.8	(8.0)	(2)%	

revenues																
SSD service revenues	68.7		63.8		4.9		8	%	199.2		187.9		11.3	í	6	%
Total SSD revenues	\$225.4		\$226.0		\$(0.6)		%	\$636.0		\$632.7		\$3.3		1	%
SSD contribution margin (*)	\$99.8		\$94.5		\$5.3		6	%	\$256.2		\$250.3		\$5.9		2	%
Percentage of SSD revenues	44.3	%	41.8	%					40.3	%	39.6	%				

^(*) A reconciliation of total segment operating income to income before taxes and noncontrolling interest can be found in Note 13, Segments, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement in Item I of this Report.

Table of Contents

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, SSD product revenues decreased slightly compared to the same periods in 2011. The decrease during the three months ended September 30, 2012 was primarily due to a decline in sales of our legacy high end firewall products. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the decrease was primarily due to a decline in the sales of our legacy high end firewall and routing service products, partially offset by an increase in sales of our high end SRX products.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, SSD service revenues increased compared to the same periods in 2011. The increase was mainly attributable to stronger contract renewal on support services during the period.

SSD contribution margin as a percentage of SSD revenues increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the same periods in 2011. The increase during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 was primarily due to a favorable shift in product mix and reduced costs as a result of our effort to maintain cost efficiencies.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have funded our business primarily through our operating activities and the issuance of our common stock, and more recently, the issuance of long-term debt. The following table shows our capital resources (in millions, except percentages and days sales outstanding):

	September 30, 2012	December 31, 2011	\$ Change		% Change	
Working capital	\$2,440.5	\$2,973.0	\$(532.5)	(18)%
Deferred revenue	\$992.9	\$967.0	\$25.9		3	%
Days sales outstanding ("DSO")	32	46	(14)	(30)%
Cash and cash equivalents	\$2,707.9	\$2,910.4	\$(202.5)	(7)%
Short-term investments	439.3	641.3	(202.0)	(31)%
Long-term investments	900.8	740.7	160.1		22	%
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments	4,048.0	4,292.4	(244.4)	(6)%
Long-term debt	999.1	999.0	0.1		_	%
Net cash, cash equivalents, and investments	\$3,048.9	\$3,293.4	\$(244.5)	(7)%

The significant components of our working capital are cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and accounts receivable, reduced by accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and short-term deferred revenue. Working capital decreased by \$532.5 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, primarily due to purchases of capital equipment, campus build-out expenditures, repurchases of our outstanding common stock under our stock repurchase programs, and cash payments for acquisitions completed during the first half of 2012.

DSO as of September 30, 2012 decreased by 14 days, or 30% compared to December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily due to shipment linearity resulting in a greater proportion of the periods shipments converted to cash by the end of the period.

Summary of Cash Flows

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, cash and cash equivalents decreased by \$202.5 million. The decrease was the result of cash generated by our operating activities of \$487.6 million, offset by cash used in investing and financing activities of \$367.8 million and \$322.3 million, respectively.

Operating Activities

Cash flows from operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, was \$487.6 million as compared to \$743.1 million for the same period in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to lower net income, higher taxes paid, timing of payments to our vendors, and an increase in inventory purchases.

Investing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, net cash used in investing activities was \$367.8 million compared to \$653.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011. The decrease between these periods was primarily due to an increase in

Table of Contents

our investment balances using proceeds from our debt offering in the nine months ended September 30, 2012, partially offset by higher spending on other asset purchases, acquisitions, and property and equipment during the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was \$322.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to net cash generated from financing activities of \$820.9 million for the same period in 2011. The change was primarily due to the issuance of our long-term debt on March 5, 2011. For further discussion of our long-term debt, see Note 10, Long-Term Debt and Financing, in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Report.

Stock Repurchase Activities

In June 2012, our Board of Directors (the "Board") approved a stock repurchase program (the "2012 Stock Repurchase Program") which authorized us to repurchase up to \$1.0 billion of our common stock from time to time in management's discretion. This authorization was in addition to the \$1.0 billion approved by the Board in February 2010 (the "2010 Stock Repurchase Program").

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, we repurchased and retired approximately 13.9 million and 21.3 million shares of our common stock under our stock repurchase programs at an average price of \$18.00 and \$18.60 per share for an aggregate purchase price of \$250.0 million and \$395.6 million, respectively. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, we repurchased and retired approximately 8.9 million and 17.5 million shares of our common stock at an average price of \$21.47 and \$30.93 per share for an aggregate purchase price of \$191.0 million and \$541.2 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, there were \$818.2 million of authorized funds remaining under our 2012 Stock Repurchase Program. There were no remaining funds under our 2010 Stock Repurchase Program.

Restructuring

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we accrued total restructuring charges of approximately \$32.8 million of which approximately \$30.1 million related to severance charges which are expected to be substantially paid during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012. The remaining \$2.7 million related to facility closures are expected to be paid through first quarter of 2018.

Deferred Revenue

The following table summarizes our deferred product and service revenues (in millions):

As or September 30,	December 31,
2012	2011
\$299.4	\$288.1
136.9	134.0
436.3	422.1
(103.3) (136.9
333.0	285.2
659.9	681.8
\$992.9	\$967.0
	September 30, 2012 \$299.4 136.9 436.3 (103.3 333.0 659.9

Deferred gross product revenue as of September 30, 2012, increased \$14.2 million compared to December 31, 2011, primarily due to an increase in deferred product revenue driven by undelivered product commitments and other product deferrals. Total deferred service revenue decreased \$21.9 million compared to December 31, 2011, driven by timing of revenue recognition, offset by service contracts renewal.

Table of Contents

Contractual Obligations

There have been no significant changes during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, to the contractual obligations disclosed in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, set forth in Part II, Item 7, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resource Requirements

Liquidity and capital resources may be impacted by our operating activities as well as acquisitions and investments in strategic relationships that we have made or we may make in the future. Additionally, if we were to repurchase additional shares of our common stock under the 2012 Stock Repurchase Program, our liquidity may be impacted. As of September 30, 2012, 55% of our cash and investment balances were held outside of the U.S., which may be subject to U.S. taxes if repatriated.

In August 2010, we filed a \$1.5 billion shelf registration statement with the SEC. In March 2011, we issued \$1.0 billion in principle amount of senior notes under the shelf registration statement. While we have no current plans to do so, we may issue up to \$500 million in additional securities under the shelf registration statement. The shelf registration statement is intended to give us flexibility to take advantage of financing opportunities as needed or deemed desirable in light of market conditions. Any additional offerings of securities under the shelf registration statement will be made pursuant to a prospectus. However, such financing opportunities may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all.

We have been focused on managing our annual equity usage as a percentage of the common stock outstanding to align with peer group competitive levels and have made changes in recent years to reduce the number of shares underlying the equity awards we grant. For fiscal year 2012, we intend to target the number of shares underlying equity awards granted on an annual basis at 2.75% or less of our common stock outstanding. Based upon shares underlying our grants to date of options, RSUs, and PSAs (counting only the on-target measure of such PSAs), we believe we are on track with respect to this goal for 2012.

Based on past performance and current expectations, we believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, short-term, and long-term investments, together with cash generated from operations as well as cash generated from the exercise of employee stock options and purchases under our employee stock purchase plan will be sufficient to fund our operations and anticipated growth for at least the next 12 months. We believe our working capital is sufficient to meet our liquidity requirements for capital expenditures, commitments, and other liquidity requirements associated with our existing operations during the same period. However, our future liquidity and capital requirements may vary materially from those now planned depending on many factors, including:

level and mix of our product, sales, and gross profit margins;

our business, product, capital expenditures and R&D plans;

repurchases of our common stock;

incurrence and repayment of debt and related interest obligations;

litigation expenses, settlements, and judgments, or similar items related to resolution of tax audits;

volume price discounts and customer rebates;

accounts receivable levels that we maintain;
acquisitions and/or funding of other businesses, assets, products, or technologies;
changes in our compensation policies;
capital improvements for new and existing facilities;
technological advances;
our competitors' responses to our products and/or pricing;
47

Table of Contents

our relationships with supplies, partners, and customers;

possible future investments in raw material and finished goods inventories;

expenses related to future restructuring plans, if any;

tax expense associated with share-based awards;

issuance of share-based awards and the related payment in cash for withholding taxes in the current year and possibly during future years;

level of exercises of stock options and stock purchases under our equity incentive plans; and

general economic conditions and specific conditions in our industry and markets, including the effects of disruptions in global credit and financial markets, international conflicts, and related uncertainties.

Factors That May Affect Future Results

A description of the risk factors associated with our business is included under "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part II of this Report.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our exposures to market risk have not changed materially since December 31, 2011. For quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk, see Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Attached as exhibits to this report are certifications of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, which are required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). This "Controls and Procedures" section includes information concerning the controls and related evaluations referred to in the certifications and it should be read in conjunction with the certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the third quarter of 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"), does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system's objectives will be met. Our controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that our control system's objectives will be met and our CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Table of Contents

at the reasonable assurance level. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of these controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Projections of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures.

PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The information set forth under the "Legal Proceedings" section in Note 16, Commitments and Contingencies, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Factors That May Affect Future Results

Investments in our securities involve significant risks. The market price of our stock has historically reflected a higher multiple of earnings than many other companies. Accordingly, even small changes in investor expectations for our future growth and earnings, whether as a result of actual or rumored financial or operating results, changes in the mix of the products and services sold, acquisitions, industry changes, or other factors, could trigger, and have triggered in the past, significant fluctuations in the market price of our common stock. Investors in our securities should carefully consider all of the relevant factors disclosed by the Company, including, but not limited to, the following factors, that could affect our stock price.

Our quarterly results are unpredictable and subject to substantial fluctuations, and, as a result, we may fail to meet the expectations of securities analysts and investors, which could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

Our revenues and operating results may vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter due to a number of factors, many of which are outside of our control and any of which may cause our stock price to fluctuate.

The factors that may cause our quarterly results to vary quarter by quarter and be unpredictable include, but are not limited to: limited visibility into customer spending plans, changes in the mix of products and services sold, changes in geographies in which our products and services are sold, changing market and economic conditions, current and potential customer consolidation, competition, customer concentration, long sales and implementation cycles, regional economic and political conditions, and seasonality. For example, many companies in our industry experience adverse seasonal fluctuations in customer spending, particularly in the first and third quarters. Market trends, competitive pressures, commoditization of products, seasonal rebates, increased component or shipping costs, regulatory impacts and other factors may result in reductions in revenue or pressure on gross margins of certain segments in a given period, which may necessitate adjustments to our operations.

As a result of these factors, as well as other variables affecting our operating results, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of operating results are not necessarily a good indication of what our future performance will be. It is

likely that in some future quarters, our operating results may be below our guidance or the expectations of securities analysts or investors, in which case the price of our common stock may decline. Such a decline could occur, and has occurred in the past, even when we have met our publicly stated revenues and/or earnings guidance.

Fluctuating economic conditions make it difficult to predict revenues for a particular period and a shortfall in revenues or increase in costs of production may harm our operating results.

Our revenues and gross margin depend significantly on general economic conditions and the demand for products in the markets in which we compete. Economic weakness, customer financial difficulties, and constrained spending on network expansion and enterprise infrastructure have in the past resulted in, and may in the future result in, decreased revenues and earnings. Such factors could make it difficult to accurately forecast sales and operating results and could negatively affect our

Table of Contents

ability to provide accurate forecasts to our contract manufacturers and manage our contract manufacturer relationships and other expenses. In addition, concerns over the sovereign debt situation in certain countries in the European Union, as well as continued turmoil in the geopolitical environment in many parts of the world, have and may continue to put pressure on global economic conditions, which has led, and could continue to lead, to reduced demand for our products, to delays or reductions in network expansions or infrastructure projects, and/or higher costs of production. Economic weakness may also lead to longer collection cycles for payments due from our customers, an increase in customer bad debt, restructuring initiatives and associated expenses, and impairment of investments. Furthermore, the continued weakness and uncertainty in worldwide credit markets, including the sovereign debt situation in certain countries in the European Union, may adversely impact the ability of our customers to adequately fund their expected capital expenditures, which could lead to delays or cancellations of planned purchases of our products or services. In addition, our operating expenses are largely based on anticipated revenue trends and a high percentage of our expenses is, and will continue to be, fixed in the short and medium term.

Uncertainty about future economic conditions also makes it difficult to forecast operating results and to make decisions about future investments. Future or continued economic weakness, failure of our customers and markets to recover from such weakness, customer financial difficulties, increases in costs of production, and reductions in spending on network maintenance and expansion could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products and consequently on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

A limited number of our customers comprise a significant portion of our revenues and any decrease in revenues from these customers could have an adverse effect on our net revenues and operating results.

A substantial majority of our net revenues depend on sales to a limited number of customers and distribution partners. For example, Verizon accounted for greater than 15% of our net revenues in the first quarter of 2012 and 12% of our net revenues in the second quarter of 2012. Changes in the business requirements, vendor selection, financial prospects, capital resources, and expenditures, or purchasing behavior (including product mix purchased) of our key customers could significantly decrease sales to such customers or could lead to delays or cancellations of planned purchases of our products or services, which increases the risk of quarterly fluctuations in our revenues and operating results. Any of these factors could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, in recent years, there has been movement towards consolidation in the telecommunications industry (for example, the acquisitions of Global Crossing by Level 3 Communications and Qwest Communications by CenturyLink and Softbank's proposed purchase of a controlling interest in Sprint Nextel) and that consolidation trend has continued. If our customers or partners are parties to consolidation transactions they may delay, suspend or indefinitely reduce or cancel their purchases of our products or other unforeseen consequences could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The long sales and implementation cycles for our products, as well as our expectation that some customers will sporadically place large orders with short lead times, may cause our revenues and operating results to vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter.

A customer's decision to purchase certain of our products, particularly new products, involves a significant commitment of its resources and a lengthy evaluation and product qualification process. As a result, the sales cycle may be lengthy. In particular, customers making critical decisions regarding the design and implementation of large network deployments may engage in very lengthy procurement processes that may delay or impact expected future orders. Throughout the sales cycle, we may spend considerable time educating and providing information to prospective customers regarding the use and benefits of our products. Even after making the decision to purchase, customers may deploy our products slowly and deliberately. Timing of deployment can vary widely and depends on the skill set of the customer, the size of the network deployment, the complexity of the customer's network environment, and the degree of hardware and operating system configuration necessary to deploy the products.

Customers with large networks usually expand their networks in large increments on a periodic basis. Accordingly, we may receive purchase orders for significant dollar amounts on an irregular basis. These long cycles, as well as our expectation that customers will tend to sporadically place large orders with short lead times, both of which may be exacerbated by the impact of continued global economic weakness, may cause revenues and operating results to vary significantly and unexpectedly from quarter-to-quarter.

We face intense competition that could reduce our revenues and adversely affect our business and financial results.

Competition is intense in the markets that we address. The PSD market has historically been dominated by Cisco, with competition coming from other companies such as Alcatel-Lucent, Brocade, Extreme Networks, Hewlett Packard Company, and Huawei. In the SSD market, we face intense competition from a broader group of companies such as Check Point, Cisco,

Table of Contents

F5 Networks, Palo Alto Networks, and Fortinet. In addition, a number of other small public and private companies have products or have announced plans for new products to address the same challenges and markets that our products address.

In addition, actual or speculated consolidation among competitors, or the acquisition of our partners and/or resellers by competitors, can increase the competitive pressures faced by us as customers may delay spending decisions or not purchase our products at all. For example, Ericsson acquired Redback in 2007, and Brocade acquired Foundry Networks in 2009. A number of our competitors have substantially greater resources and can offer a wider range of products and services for the overall network equipment market than we do. If we are unable to compete successfully against existing and future competitors on the basis of product offerings or price, we could experience a loss in market share and revenues and/or be required to reduce prices, which could reduce our gross margins, and which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We expect our gross margins to vary over time, and the level of product gross margins achieved by us in recent years may not be sustainable.

We expect our product gross margins to vary from quarter-to-quarter, and the gross margins we have achieved in recent years may not be sustainable and may be adversely affected in the future by numerous factors, including customer, product and geographic mix shifts, increased price competition in one or more of the markets in which we compete, increases in material or labor costs, increases in inventory carrying costs, excess product component or obsolescence charges from our contract manufacturers, increased costs due to changes in component pricing or charges incurred due to component holding periods if we do not accurately forecast product demand, warranty related issues, or our introduction of new products or entry into new markets with different pricing and cost structures. For example, in the third quarter of fiscal 2012, our margins were reduced as a result of an inventory charge resulting from inventory we held in excess of forecasted demand. Failure to sustain or improve our gross margins reduces our profitability and may have a material adverse effect on our business and stock price.

If we receive product orders late in a quarter, we may be unable to recognize revenue for these orders in the same period, which could adversely affect our quarterly revenues.

Generally, our PSD products are not stocked by distributors or resellers due to their cost and complexity and configurations required by our customers, and we generally build such products as orders are received. In recent years, the volume of orders received late in any given fiscal quarter has generally continued to increase but remains unpredictable. If orders for certain products are received late in any quarter, we may not be able to build, ship, and recognize revenue for these orders in the same period, which could adversely affect our ability to meet our expected revenues for such quarter. Additionally, we determine our operating expenses largely on the basis of anticipated revenues and a high percentage of our expenses are fixed in the short and medium term. As a result, a failure or delay in generating or recognizing revenue could cause significant variations in our operating results and operating margin from quarter-to-quarter.

We rely on value-added and other resellers, as well as distribution partners, to sell our products, and disruptions to, or our failure to effectively develop and manage our distribution channel and the processes and procedures that support it could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues from the sale of our products.

Our future success is highly dependent upon establishing and maintaining successful relationships with a variety of value-added and other reseller and distribution partners, including our worldwide strategic partners such as Ericsson, IBM, and NSN. The majority of our revenues are derived through value-added resellers and distributors, most of which also sell our competitors' products, and some of which sell their own products that compete with our products. Our revenues depend in part on the performance of these partners. The loss of or reduction in sales to our value-added

resellers or distributors could materially reduce our revenues. For example, in 2006, one of our largest resellers, Lucent, was acquired by Alcatel, a competitor of ours. As a result of the merger, Lucent became a competitor, their resale of our products declined, and we ultimately terminated our reseller agreement with Lucent. Our competitors may in some cases be effective in leveraging their market share positions or in providing incentives to current or potential resellers and distributors to favor their products or to prevent or reduce sales of our products. If we fail to develop and maintain relationships with our partners, fail to develop new relationships with value-added resellers and distributors in new markets, or expand the number of distributors and resellers in existing markets, fail to manage, train or motivate existing value-added resellers and distributors effectively, or if these partners are not successful in their sales efforts, sales of our products may decrease, and our business, financial condition, and results of operations would suffer.

In addition, we recognize a portion of our revenues based on a sell-through model using information provided by our distributors. If those distributors provide us with inaccurate or untimely information, the amount or timing of our revenues could be adversely impacted.

Table of Contents

Further, in order to develop and expand our distribution channel, we must continue to offer attractive channel programs to potential partners and scale and improve our processes and procedures that support the channel. As a result, our programs, processes and procedures may become increasingly complex and inherently difficult to manage. We have previously entered into OEM agreements with partners pursuant to which they rebrand and resell our products as part of their product portfolios. These types of relationships are complex and require additional processes and procedures that may be challenging and costly to implement, maintain and manage. Our failure to successfully manage and develop our distribution channel and the programs, processes and procedures that support it could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues from the sale of our products.

Our ability to process orders and ship products in a timely manner is dependent in part on our business systems and performance of the systems and processes of third parties such as our contract manufacturers, suppliers, or other partners, as well as the interfaces between our systems and the systems of such third parties. If our systems, the systems and processes of those third parties, or the interfaces between them experience delays or fail, our business processes and our ability to build and ship products could be impacted, and our financial results could be harmed.

Some of our business processes depend upon our information technology ("IT") systems, the systems, and processes of third parties, and on the interfaces of our systems with the systems of third parties. For example, our order entry system feeds information into the systems of our contract manufacturers, which enables them to build and ship our products. If those systems fail or are interrupted, our processes may function at a diminished level or not at all. This could negatively impact our ability to ship products or otherwise operate our business, and our financial results could be harmed. For example, although it did not adversely affect our shipments, an earthquake in late December of 2006 disrupted our communications with China, where a significant part of our manufacturing occurs.

We also rely upon the performance of the systems and processes of our contract manufacturers to build and ship our products. If those systems and processes experience interruption or delay, our ability to build and ship our products in a timely manner may be harmed. For example, as we have expanded our contract manufacturing base to China, we have experienced instances where our contract manufacturer was not able to ship products in the time periods expected by us. If we are not able to ship our products or if product shipments are delayed, our ability to recognize revenue in a timely manner for those products would be affected and our financial results could be harmed.

Telecommunications companies and our other large customers generally require more onerous terms and conditions in our contracts with them. As we seek to sell more products to such customers, we may be required to agree to terms and conditions that could have an adverse effect on our business or ability to recognize revenues.

Telecommunications service provider companies, which comprise a significant portion of our customer base, and other large companies, because of their size, generally have greater purchasing power and, accordingly, have requested and received more favorable terms from others, which often translate into more onerous terms and conditions from us. Recently, France Telecom-Orange and Deutsche Telekom AG have formed a company for the purpose of purchasing products from, and negotiating more favorable contractual terms with, suppliers. As we seek to sell more products to this class of customer, we may be required to agree to such terms and conditions, which may include terms that affect the timing of our ability to recognize revenue and have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Consolidation among such large customers can further increase their buying power and ability to require onerous terms.

For example, customers in this class have purchased products from other vendors who promised but failed to deliver certain functionality and/or had products that caused problems or outages in the networks of these customers. As a result, these customers may request additional features from us and require substantial penalties for failure to deliver such features or may require substantial penalties for any network outages that may be caused by our products. These additional requests and penalties, if we are required to agree to them, may require us to defer revenue recognition from

such sales, which may negatively affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We are dependent on sole source and limited source suppliers for several key components, which makes us susceptible to shortages or price fluctuations in our supply chain, and we may face increased challenges in supply chain management in the future.

During periods of high demand for electronic products, component shortages are possible, and the predictability of the availability of such components may be limited. Any future growth in our business and the economy is likely to create greater pressures on us and our suppliers to accurately forecast overall component demand and to establish optimal component levels. If shortages or delays persist, the price of these components may increase, or the components may not be available at all. We may not be able to secure enough components at reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to build new products in a timely

Table of Contents

manner, and our revenues and gross margins could suffer until other sources can be developed. For example, from time to time, we have experienced component shortages that resulted in delays of product shipments. We currently purchase numerous key components, including ASICs, from single or limited sources. The development of alternate sources for those components is time-consuming, difficult, and costly. In addition, the lead times associated with certain components are lengthy and preclude rapid changes in quantities and delivery schedules. Also, long-term supply and maintenance obligations to customers increase the duration for which specific components are required, which may further increase the risk of component shortages or the cost of carrying inventory. In the event of a component shortage or supply interruption from these suppliers, we may not be able to develop alternate or second sources in a timely manner. If we are unable to buy these components in quantities sufficient to meet our requirements on a timely basis, we will not be able to deliver product to our customers, which would seriously affect present and future sales, which would, in turn, adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, the development, licensing, or acquisition of new products in the future may increase the complexity of supply chain management. Failure to effectively manage the supply of key components and products would adversely affect our business.

System security risks, data protection breaches, and cyber-attacks could compromise our proprietary information, disrupt our internal operations and harm public perception of our security products, which could cause our business and reputation to suffer and adversely affect our stock price.

In the ordinary course of business, we store sensitive data, including intellectual property, our proprietary business information and that of our customers, suppliers and business partners on our networks. The secure maintenance of this information is critical to our operations and business strategy. Increasingly, companies, including Juniper Networks, are subject to a wide variety of attacks on their networks on an ongoing basis. Despite our security measures, Juniper Networks' information technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to penetration or attacks by computer programmers and hackers, or breached due to employee error, malfeasance or other disruptions. Any such breach could compromise our networks, creating system disruptions or slowdowns and exploiting security vulnerabilities of our products, and the information stored on our networks could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen, which could subject us to liability to our customers, suppliers, business partners and others, and cause us reputational and financial harm. In addition, sophisticated hardware and operating system software and applications that we produce or procure from third parties may contain defects in design or manufacture, including "bugs" and other problems that could unexpectedly interfere with the operation of our networks.

If an actual or perceived breach of network security occurs in our network or in the network of a customer of our security products, regardless of whether the breach is attributable to our products, the market perception of the effectiveness of our products could be harmed. Because the techniques used by computer programmers and hackers, many of whom are highly sophisticated and well-funded, to access or sabotage networks change frequently and generally are not recognized until after they are used, we may be unable to anticipate or immediately detect these techniques. This could impede our sales, manufacturing, distribution or other critical functions. In addition, the economic costs to us to eliminate or alleviate cyber or other security problems, bugs, viruses, worms, malicious software systems and security vulnerabilities could be significant and may be difficult to anticipate or measure because the damage may differ based on the identity and motive of the programmer or hacker, which are often difficult to identify.

Regulation of the telecommunications industry could harm our operating results and future prospects.

The traditional telecommunications industry is highly regulated, and our business and financial condition could be adversely affected by changes in regulations relating to the Internet telecommunications industry. Currently, there are few laws or regulations that apply directly to access to or commerce on IP networks, but future regulations could

include sales taxes on products sold via the Internet and Internet service provider access charges. We could be adversely affected by regulation of IP networks and commerce in any country where we market equipment and services to service or content providers. Regulations governing the range of services and business models that can be offered by service providers or content providers could adversely affect those customers' needs for products designed to enable a wide range of such services or business models. For instance, the U.S. Federal Communications Commission has issued regulations governing aspects of fixed broadband networks and wireless networks; these regulations might impact service provider and content provider business models and as such, providers' needs for Internet telecommunications equipment and services. Also, many jurisdictions are evaluating or implementing regulations relating to cyber security, supply chain integrity, privacy and data protection, which can affect the market and requirements for networking and security equipment.

Table of Contents

In addition, environmental regulations relevant to electronic equipment manufacturing or operations may impact our business and financial condition adversely. For instance, the European Union and China have adopted WEEE and ROHS regulations, which require producers of electrical and electronic equipment to assume responsibility for collecting, treating, recycling and disposing of products when they have reached the end of their useful life, as well as REACH regulations, which regulate handling of certain chemical substances that may be used in our products. In addition, some governments have regulations prohibiting government entities from purchasing security products that do not meet specified indigenous certification criteria, even though those criteria may be in conflict with accepted international standards. These regulations are in effect or under consideration in several jurisdictions where we do business.

The adoption and implementation of such regulations could reduce demand for our products, increase the cost of building and selling our products, result in product inventory write-offs, impact our ability to ship products into affected areas and recognize revenue in a timely manner and require us to spend significant time and expense to comply, and we could face fines and civil or criminal sanctions or claims if we were to violate or become liable under such regulations. Any of these impacts could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Governmental regulations affecting the import or export of products or affecting products containing encryption capabilities could negatively affect our revenues.

Certain of our products contain or use encryption technology. The United States and various foreign governments have imposed controls, export license requirements, and restrictions on the import or export, among other things, encryption technology. In addition, from time to time, governmental agencies have proposed additional regulation of encryption technology, such as requiring certification, notifications, review of source code, or the escrow and governmental recovery of private encryption keys. For example, Russia and China recently have implemented new requirements relating to products containing encryption and India has imposed special warranty and other obligations associated with technology deemed critical. Governmental regulation of encryption or IP networking technology and regulation of imports or exports, or our failure to obtain required import or export approval for our products, could harm our international and domestic sales and adversely affect our revenues. In addition, failure to comply with such regulations could result in harm to our reputation, penalties, costs, and restrictions on import or export privileges or adversely affect sales to government agencies or government-funded projects.

If we do not successfully anticipate technological shifts, market needs and opportunities, and develop products and product enhancements that meet those technological shifts, needs and opportunities, or if those products are not made available in a timely manner or do not gain market acceptance, we may not be able to compete effectively and our ability to generate revenues will suffer.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to anticipate future technological shifts, market needs and opportunities or be able to develop new products or product enhancements to meet such technological shifts, needs or opportunities in a timely manner or at all. If we fail to anticipate market requirements or fail to develop and introduce new products or product enhancements to meet those needs in a timely manner, it could cause us to lose customers, and such failure could substantially decrease or delay market acceptance and sales of our present and future products, which would significantly harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Even if we are able to anticipate, develop, and commercially introduce new products and enhancements, there can be no assurance that new products or enhancements will achieve widespread market acceptance.

For example, as a result of our acquisitions of Altor and Trapeze in 2010, we have been offering a virtualization security product and a WLAN product. Additionally, in 2011, we announced our new data center product, the QFabricTM solution, our mobility solutions with our MobileNextTM software and our Converged Supercore product, which

converges the optical and packet layers of the network. If these or other new products do not gain market acceptance at a sufficient rate of growth, our ability to meet future financial targets may be adversely affected. In addition, if we fail to achieve market acceptance at a sufficient rate of growth, our ability to meet future financial targets and aspirations may be adversely affected. Finally, if we fail to deliver new or announced products to the market in a timely manner, it could adversely affect the market acceptance of those products and harm our competitive position and our business and financial results.

Our ability to develop, market, and sell products could be harmed if we are unable to retain or hire key personnel.

Our future success depends upon our ability to recruit and retain the services of executive, engineering, sales and marketing, and support personnel. The supply of highly qualified individuals, in particular engineers in very specialized technical areas, or sales people specializing in the service provider and enterprise markets, is limited and competition for such individuals is intense. None of our officers or key employees is bound by an employment agreement for any specific term. The loss of the services of any of our key employees, the inability to attract or retain personnel in the future or delays in hiring required

Table of Contents

personnel, particularly engineers and sales people, and the complexity and time involved in replacing or training new employees, could delay the development and introduction of new products, and negatively impact our ability to market, sell, or support our products.

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomes resulting from examination of our income or other tax returns could adversely affect our results.

Our future effective tax rates could be volatile and maybe adversely affected by: earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have lower statutory rates and higher than anticipated earnings in countries where we have higher statutory rates; changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities; expiration of, or lapses in, the R&D tax credit laws applicable to us; transfer pricing adjustments related to certain acquisitions, including the license of acquired intangibles under our intercompany R&D cost sharing arrangement; tax effects of share-based compensation; costs related to intercompany restructurings; or changes in tax laws, regulations, accounting principles, or interpretations thereof. In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and other tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. There can be no assurance that the outcomes from these continuous examinations will not have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

From time to time, we receive preliminary notices of deficiency or notices of proposed adjustments from the IRS claiming that we owe additional taxes, plus interest and possible penalties. For example, we received a preliminary notice of deficiency in 2011 and one in 2009 for prior tax years based on transfer pricing transactions related to the license of acquired intangibles under an intercompany R&D cost sharing arrangement. As a result of the preliminary notices of deficiency received in 2011 and 2009, the incremental tax liability would be approximately \$92.0 million and \$807.0 million, excluding interest and penalties, respectively. We believe the IRS' position with regard to these matters is inconsistent with applicable tax laws, judicial precedent and existing Treasury regulations, and that our previously reported income tax provisions for the years in question are appropriate. However, there can be no assurance that these matters will be resolved in our favor. Regardless of whether these matters are resolved in our favor, the final resolution of these matters could be expensive and time-consuming to defend and/or settle. While we believe we have provided adequately for these matters, there is a possibility that an adverse outcome of these matters individually or in the aggregate could have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

If we fail to accurately predict our manufacturing requirements, we could incur additional costs or experience manufacturing delays, which would harm our business.

We provide demand forecasts to our contract manufacturers and the manufacturers order components and plan capacity based on these forecasts. If we overestimate our requirements, our contract manufacturers may assess charges, or we may have liabilities for excess inventory, each of which could negatively affect our gross margins. For example, in the third quarter of fiscal 2012, our gross margins were reduced as a result of an inventory charge resulting from inventory we held in excess of forecasted demand. Conversely, because lead times for required materials and components vary significantly and depend on factors such as the specific supplier, contract terms, and the demand for each component at a given time, if we underestimate our requirements, as we did in the third quarter of 2010 with respect to certain components, our contract manufacturers may have inadequate time, materials, and/or components required to produce our products, which could increase costs or could delay or interrupt manufacturing of our products and result in delays in shipments and deferral or loss of revenues.

We are dependent on contract manufacturers with whom we do not have long-term supply contracts, and changes to those relationships, expected or unexpected, may result in delays or disruptions that could cause us to lose revenues and damage our customer relationships.

We depend on independent contract manufacturers (each of which is a third-party manufacturer for numerous companies) to manufacture our products. Although we have contracts with our contract manufacturers, these contracts do not require them to manufacture our products on a long-term basis in any specific quantity or at any specific price. In addition, it is time-consuming and costly to qualify and implement additional contract manufacturer relationships. Therefore, if we fail to effectively manage our contract manufacturer relationships, or if one or more of them experiences delays, disruptions, or quality control problems in our manufacturing operations, or if we had to change or add additional contract manufacturers or contract manufacturing sites, our ability to ship products to our customers could be delayed. Also, the addition of manufacturing locations or contract manufacturers would increase the complexity of our supply chain management. Moreover, an increasing portion of our manufacturing is performed in China and other countries and is therefore subject to risks associated with doing business in other countries. Each of these factors could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Table of Contents

Upgrades to key internal systems and processes, and problems with the design or implementation of these systems and processes could interfere with, and therefore harm, our business and operations.

We previously initiated a multi-year project to upgrade certain key internal systems and processes, including our company-wide human resources management system, our customer relationship management ("CRM") system and enterprise resource planning ("ERP") system. In the first quarter of 2010, we implemented a major upgrade of our CRM system. In 2012 and 2013, we expect to implement major changes to our ERP system. We have invested, and will continue to invest, significant capital and human resources in the design and implementation of these systems and processes. Any disruptions or delays in the design and implementation of the new systems or processes, particularly any disruptions or delays that impact our operations, could adversely affect our ability to process customer orders, ship products, provide service and support to our customers, bill and track our customers, fulfill contractual obligations, record and transfer information in a timely and accurate manner, file SEC reports in a timely manner, or otherwise run our business. Even if we do not encounter these adverse effects, the design and implementation of these new systems and processes may be much more costly than we anticipated. If we are unable to successfully design and implement these new systems and processes as planned, or if the implementation of these systems and processes is more costly than anticipated, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be negatively impacted.

We are a party to lawsuits, proceedings, and other disputes, which are costly to defend and, if determined adversely to us, could require us to pay damages or prevent us from taking certain actions, any or all of which could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We, and certain of our current and former officers and current and former members of our Board of Directors, are subject to various lawsuits. We have been served with lawsuits related to employment matters, commercial transactions and patent infringement as well as securities laws, a description of the securities lawsuits can be found in Note 16, Commitments and Contingencies, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, under the heading "Legal Proceedings." There can be no assurance that these or any actions that have been or may in the future be brought against us, our officers, and our directors will be resolved favorably or that tentative settlements will become final. Regardless of whether they are resolved, these lawsuits are, and any future lawsuits or threatened legal proceedings to which we, our officers, or our directors may become a party will likely be, expensive and time-consuming to defend, settle, and/or resolve. Legal proceedings, threatened legal proceedings or investigations, regardless of their ultimate outcome, could harm our reputation. Costs of defense, as well as any losses resulting from these claims or settlement of these claims, could significantly increase our expenses and could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We are a party to litigation and claims regarding intellectual property rights, resolution of which may be time-consuming and expensive, as well as require a significant amount of resources to prosecute, defend, or make our products non-infringing.

Our industry is characterized by the existence of a large number of patents and frequent claims and related litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. We expect that infringement claims may increase as the number of products and competitors in our market increases and overlaps occur. Third parties have asserted and may in the future assert claims or initiate litigation related to patent, copyright, trademark, and other intellectual property rights to technologies and related standards that are relevant to our products. The asserted claims and/or initiated litigation may include claims against us or our manufacturers, suppliers, partners, or customers, alleging that our products or services infringe proprietary rights. Regardless of the merit of these claims, they have been and can be time-consuming, result in costly litigation, and may require us to develop non-infringing technologies or enter into license agreements. Furthermore, because of the potential for high awards of damages or injunctive relief that are not necessarily predictable, even arguably unmeritorious claims may be settled for significant amounts of money. If any infringement or other intellectual property claim made against us by any third-party is successful, if we are required to settle

litigation for significant amounts of money, or if we fail to develop non-infringing technology or license required proprietary rights on commercially reasonable terms and conditions, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

We may face difficulties enforcing our proprietary rights.

We generally rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secret laws and restrictions on disclosure of confidential and proprietary information, to establish and maintain proprietary rights in our technology and products. Although we have been issued numerous patents and other patent applications are currently now pending, there can be no assurance that any of these patents or other proprietary rights will not be challenged, invalidated, infringed or circumvented or that our rights will, in fact, provide competitive advantages to us or protect our technology, either of which could result in costly product

Table of Contents

redesign efforts, discontinuance of certain product offerings and other competitive harm. Furthermore, the laws of some foreign countries may not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States. The outcome of any actions taken in these foreign countries may be different than if such actions were determined under the laws of the United States. Although we are not dependent on any individual patents or group of patents for particular segments of the business for which we compete, if we are unable to protect our proprietary rights in a market, we may find ourselves at a competitive disadvantage to others who need not incur the substantial expense, time, and effort required to create innovative products that have enabled our success.

Our success depends upon our ability to effectively plan and manage our resources and restructure our business through rapidly fluctuating economic and market conditions.

Our ability to successfully offer our products and services in a rapidly evolving market requires an effective planning, forecasting, and management process to enable us to effectively scale and adjust our business in response to fluctuating market opportunities and conditions.

In periods of market expansion, we have increased investment in our business by, for example, increasing headcount and increasing our investment in R&D, sales and marketing, and other parts of our business.

Conversely, in the third quarter of 2012, to align our cost structure with long-term strategic plans as part of our productivity and efficiency initiatives, we restructured our business, rebalanced our workforce, and reduced our real estate portfolio. Many of our expenses, such as real estate expenses, cannot be rapidly or easily adjusted because of fluctuations in our business or numbers of employees. Moreover, rapid changes in the size of our workforce could adversely affect our ability to develop and deliver products and services as planned or impair our ability to realize our current or future business objectives. Our ability to achieve the anticipated cost savings and other benefits from our restructuring initiatives within the expected time frame is subject to many estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions are subject to significant economic, competitive and other uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. If these estimates and assumptions are incorrect, if we are unsuccessful at implementing changes, or if other unforeseen events occur, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.

We are subject to risks arising from our international operations, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We derive a majority of our revenues from our international operations, and we plan to continue expanding our business in international markets in the future. We conduct significant sales and customer support operations directly and indirectly through our distributors and value-added resellers in countries throughout the world and depend on the operations of our contract manufacturers and suppliers that are located outside of the United States. In addition, a portion of our R&D and our general and administrative operations are conducted outside the United States. In some countries, we may experience reduced intellectual property protection.

As a result of our international operations, we are affected by economic, regulatory, social, and political conditions in foreign countries, including changes in general IT spending, the imposition of government controls, including critical infrastructure protection, changes or limitations in trade protection laws, other regulatory requirements, which may affect our ability to import or export our products from various countries, service provider and government spending patterns affected by political considerations, unfavorable changes in tax treaties or laws, natural disasters, epidemic disease, labor unrest, earnings expatriation restrictions, misappropriation of intellectual property, military actions, acts of terrorism, political and social unrest and difficulties in staffing and managing international operations. Any or all of these factors could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Moreover, local laws and customs in many countries differ significantly from those in the United States. In many foreign countries, particularly in those with developing economies, it is common for others to engage in business practices that are prohibited by our internal policies and procedures or United States regulations applicable to us. There can be no assurance that our employees, contractors, channel partners, and agents will not take actions in violation of our policies and procedures, which are designed to ensure compliance with U.S. and foreign laws and policies. Violations of laws or key control policies by our employees, contractors, channel partners, or agents could result in financial reporting problems, fines, penalties, or prohibition on the importation or exportation of our products, and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Table of Contents

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates, which could negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Because a majority of our business is conducted outside the United States, we face exposure to adverse movements in non-U.S. currency exchange rates. These exposures may change over time as business practices evolve and could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

The majority of our revenues and expenses are transacted in U.S. Dollars. We also have some transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the British Pound, Euro, Indian Rupee, and Japanese Yen related to our sales and service operations outside of the United States. An increase in the value of the U.S. Dollar could increase the real cost to our customers of our products in those markets outside the United States in which we sell in U.S. Dollars, and a weakened U.S. Dollar could increase the cost of local operating expenses and procurement of raw materials to the extent we must purchase components in foreign currencies.

Currently, we hedge only those currency exposures associated with certain assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional currencies and periodically hedge anticipated foreign currency cash flows. The hedging activities undertaken by us are intended to offset the impact of currency fluctuations on certain nonfunctional currency assets and liabilities. However, such attempts to offset the impact of currency fluctuations are costly and no amount of hedging can be effective against all circumstances, including long-term declines in the value of the U.S. Dollar. If our attempts to hedge against these risks are not successful, or if long-term declines in the value of the U.S. Dollar persist, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely impacted.

Integration of acquisitions could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition and stock price and may dilute the ownership of our stockholders.

We have made, and may continue to make, acquisitions in order to enhance our business. For example, in February 2012, we acquired Mykonos, and in 2010 we acquired Altor, Trapeze, SMobile, and Ankeena. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including problems combining the purchased operations, technologies or products, unanticipated costs, diversion of management's attention from our core businesses, adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers, risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience, and potential loss of key employees. There can be no assurance that we will be able to integrate successfully any businesses, products, technologies, or personnel that we might acquire. The integration of businesses that we may acquire is likely to be a complex, time-consuming, and expensive process and we may not realize the anticipated revenues or other benefits associated with our acquisitions if we fail to successfully manage and operate the acquired business. If we fail in any acquisition integration efforts and are unable to efficiently operate as a combined organization utilizing common information and communication systems, operating procedures, financial controls, and human resources practices, our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Acquisitions may also require us to issue common stock or assume equity awards that dilute the ownership of our current stockholders, use a substantial portion of our cash resources, assume liabilities, record goodwill and amortizable intangible assets that will be subject to impairment testing on a regular basis and potential periodic impairment charges, incur amortization expenses related to certain intangible assets, and incur large and immediate write-offs and restructuring and other related expenses, all of which could harm our financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to adequately evolve our financial and managerial control and reporting systems and processes, our ability to manage and grow our business will be negatively affected.

Our ability to successfully offer our products and implement our business plan in a rapidly evolving market depends upon an effective planning and management process. We will need to continue to improve our financial and managerial control and our reporting systems and procedures in order to manage our business effectively in the future. If we fail to continue to implement improved systems and processes, our ability to manage our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be negatively affected.

Our financial condition and results of operations could suffer if there is an additional impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite lives.

We are required to test annually and review on an interim basis, our goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, including the goodwill associated with past acquisitions and any future acquisitions, to determine if impairment has occurred.

Table of Contents

As of September 30, 2012, our goodwill was \$3,987.1 million. If such assets are deemed impaired, an impairment loss equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the assets would be recognized. This would result in incremental expenses for that quarter, which would reduce any earnings or increase any loss for the period in which the impairment was determined to have occurred. For example, such impairment could occur if the market value of our common stock falls below certain levels for a sustained period, or if the portions of our business related to companies we have acquired fail to grow at expected rates or decline. In the second quarter of 2006, our impairment evaluation resulted in a reduction of \$1,280.0 million to the carrying value of goodwill on our balance sheet, primarily due to the decline in our market capitalization that occurred over a period of approximately nine months prior to the impairment review and, to a lesser extent, a decrease in forecasted future cash flows. In recent years, economic weakness contributed to extreme price and volume fluctuations in global stock markets that reduced the market price of many technology company stocks, including ours. Future declines in our stock price, as well as declines in our level of revenues or gross margins, increase the risk that goodwill and intangible assets may become impaired in future periods. We cannot accurately predict the amount and timing of any impairment of assets.

Our products are highly technical and if they contain undetected errors or malware or do not meet customer quality expectations, our business could be adversely affected, and we may be subject to lawsuits or be required to pay damages in connection with any alleged or actual failure of our products and services.

Our products are highly technical and complex, are critical to the operation of many networks, and, in the case of our security products, provide and monitor network security and may protect valuable information. Our products have contained and may contain one or more undetected errors, defects, or security vulnerabilities. Some errors in our products may only be discovered after a product has been installed and used by end-customers. Any errors, defects, malware or security vulnerabilities discovered in our products after commercial release could result in monetary penalties, loss of revenues or delay in revenue recognition, loss of customers, loss of future business and reputation, penalties, and increased service and warranty cost, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, in the event an error, defect, malware, or vulnerability is attributable to a component supplied by a third-party vendor, we may not be able to recover from the vendor all of the costs of remediation that we may incur. In addition, we could face claims for product liability, tort, or breach of warranty. Defending a lawsuit, regardless of its merit, is costly and may divert management's attention. If our business liability insurance coverage is inadequate, or future coverage is unavailable on acceptable terms or at all, our financial condition and results of operations could be harmed. Moreover, if our products fail to satisfy our customers' quality expectations for whatever reason, the perception of and the demand for our products could be adversely affected.

If our products do not interoperate with our customers' networks, installations will be delayed or cancelled and could harm our business.

Our products are designed to interface with our customers' existing networks, each of which have different specifications and utilize multiple protocol standards and products from other vendors. Many of our customers' networks contain multiple generations of products that have been added over time as these networks have grown and evolved. Our products must interoperate with many or all of the products within these networks as well as future products in order to meet our customers' requirements. If we find errors in the existing software or defects in the hardware used in our customers' networks, we may need to modify our software or hardware to fix or overcome these errors so that our products will interoperate and scale with the existing software and hardware, which could be costly and could negatively affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, if our products do not interoperate with those of our customers' networks, demand for our products could be adversely affected or orders for our products could be cancelled. This could hurt our operating results, damage our reputation, and seriously harm our business and prospects.

Our products incorporate and rely upon licensed third-party technology, and if licenses of third-party technology do not continue to be available to us or become very expensive, our revenues and ability to develop and introduce new products could be adversely affected.

We integrate licensed third-party technology into certain of our products. From time to time, we may be required to license additional technology from third-parties to develop new products or product enhancements. Third-party licenses may not be available or continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms. The failure to comply with the terms of any license may result in our inability to continue to use such license. Our inability to maintain or re-license any third-party licenses required in our products or our inability to obtain third-party licenses necessary to develop new products and product enhancements, could require us, if possible, to develop substitute technology or obtain substitute technology of lower quality or performance standards or at a greater cost, any of which could delay or prevent product shipment and harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Table of Contents

We sell our products to customers that use those products to build networks and IP infrastructure, and if the demand for network and IP systems does not continue to grow, then our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected.

A substantial portion of our business and revenues depends on the growth of secure IP infrastructure and on the deployment of our products by customers that depend on the continued growth of IP services. As a result of changes in the economy capital spending or the building of network capacity in excess of demand, all of which have in the past particularly affected telecommunications service providers, spending on IP infrastructure can vary, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, a number of our existing customers are evaluating the build out of their next generation networks. During the decision-making period when the customers are determining the design of those networks and the selection of the equipment they will use in those networks, such customers may greatly reduce or suspend their spending on secure IP infrastructure. Such delays in purchases can make it more difficult to predict revenues from such customers, can cause fluctuations in the level of spending by these customers and, even where our products are ultimately selected, can have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

While we believe that we currently have adequate internal control over financial reporting, we are exposed to risks from legislation requiring companies to evaluate those internal controls.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires our management to report on, and our independent auditors to attest to, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. We have an ongoing program to perform the system and process evaluation and testing necessary to comply with these requirements. We have and will continue to incur significant expenses and devote management resources to Section 404 compliance on an ongoing basis. In the event that our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, or independent registered public accounting firm determine in the future that, our internal controls over financial reporting are not effective as defined under Section 404, investor perceptions may be adversely affected if our financial statements are not reliable and could cause a decline in the market price of our stock and otherwise negatively affect our liquidity and financial condition.

The investment of our cash balance and our investments in government and corporate debt securities are subject to risks, which may cause losses and affect the liquidity of these investments.

At September 30, 2012, we had \$2,707.9 million in cash and cash equivalents and \$1,340.0 million in short- and long-term investments. We have invested these amounts primarily in U.S. government securities, government-sponsored enterprise obligations, foreign government debt securities, corporate notes and bonds, commercial paper, and money market funds meeting certain criteria. Certain of these investments are subject to general credit, liquidity, market, and interest rate risks, which may be exacerbated by U.S. sub-prime mortgage defaults that have affected various sectors of the financial markets and caused credit and liquidity issues at many financial institutions. Our future investment income may fall short of expectations due to changes in interest rates or if the decline in fair value of our publicly traded debt or equity investments is judged to be other-than-temporary. These market risks associated with our investment portfolio may have a negative adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition, and results of operations.

We may be unable to generate the cash flow to service our debt obligations, including the Senior Notes.

In March 2011, we issued senior unsecured notes for an aggregate principle amount of \$1.0 billion (see discussion in Note 10, Long-Term Debt and Financing, in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to enable us to service our indebtedness, including the notes, or to make anticipated capital expenditures. Our ability to pay our expenses and satisfy our debt obligations, refinance our debt obligations and fund planned capital expenditures will depend on our future performance, which will be affected by

general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. Based upon current levels of operations, we believe cash flow from operations and available cash will be adequate for the foreseeable future to meet our anticipated requirements for working capital, capital expenditures and scheduled payments of principal and interest on our indebtedness, including the senior notes. However, if we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations or to borrow sufficient funds in the future to service our debt, we may be required to sell assets, reduce capital expenditures, refinance all or a portion of our existing debt (including the senior notes) or obtain additional financing. There is no assurance that we will be able to refinance our debt, sell assets or borrow more money on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Table of Contents

The indenture that governs the senior notes also contains various covenants that limit our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other things:

incur liens;

incur sale and leaseback transactions; and

consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substantially all of our assets to, another person

As a result of these covenants, we are limited in the manner in which we can conduct our business, and we may be unable to engage in favorable business activities or finance future operations or capital needs. Accordingly, these restrictions may limit our ability to successfully operate our business. A failure to comply with these restrictions could lead to an event of default, which could result in an acceleration of the indebtedness. Our future operating results may not be sufficient to enable compliance with these covenants to remedy any such default. In addition, in the event of an acceleration, we may not have or be able to obtain sufficient funds to make any accelerated payments, including those under the senior notes.

Uninsured losses could harm our operating results.

We self-insure against many business risks and expenses, such as intellectual property litigation and our medical benefit programs, where we believe we can adequately self-insure against the anticipated exposure and risk or where insurance is either not deemed cost-effective or is not available. We also maintain a program of insurance coverage for various types of property, casualty, and other risks. We place our insurance coverage with various carriers in numerous jurisdictions. The types and amounts of insurance that we obtain vary from time to time and from location to location, depending on availability, cost, and our decisions with respect to risk retention. The policies are subject to deductibles, policy limits, and exclusions that result in our retention of a level of risk on a self-insurance basis. Losses not covered by insurance could be substantial and unpredictable and could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the period covered by this report.

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period Period	Total Number of Shares Purchased	Average Price Paid per Share	Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs (*)	Maximum Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (*)
July 1 - July 31, 2012	_	\$ —	_	\$1,068,227,364
August 1 - August 31, 2012	11,090,252	18.03	11,090,252	\$868,243,528
September 1 - September 30, 2012	2,795,364	17.89	2,795,364	\$818,244,059
Total	13,885,616	\$18.00	13,885,616	

^(*) Shares were repurchased under the stock repurchase program approved by the Board in June 2012 (the "2012 Stock Repurchase Program"), which authorized the Company to purchase an aggregate of up to \$1.0 billion of the Company's common stock. Future share repurchases under this program will be subject to a review of the

circumstances in place at that time and will be made from time to time in private transactions or open market purchases as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements. This program may be discontinued at any time. As of September 30, 2012, the 2012 Stock Repurchase Program had \$818.2 million remaining authorized funds available for future stock repurchases.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits		
Exhibit Number	Description of Document	
10.1	Employment Agreement by and between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Rami Rahim*	
10.2	Consulting Agreement by and between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Stefan Dyckerhoff*	
12.1	Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges*	
31.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934*	
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934*	
32.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350*	
32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350*	
101	The following materials from Juniper Network Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, and (iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements*	
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document*	
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*	
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*	
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document*	
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*	
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document*	
*Filed herewith.		

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant had duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Juniper Networks, Inc.

November 8, 2012 By: /s/ Robyn M. Denholm

Robyn M. Denholm

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal

Financial Officer)

November 8, 2012 By: /s/ Gene Zamiska

Gene Zamiska

Vice President, Corporate Finance

(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer)

Table of Contents

Exhibit Ind Exhibit Number 10.1	Description of Document Employment Agreement by and between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Rami Rahim*
10.2	Consulting Agreement by and between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Stefan Dyckerhoff*
12.1	Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges*
31.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934*
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934*
32.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350*
32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350*
101	The following materials from Juniper Network Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, and (iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements*
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document*
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document*
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document*

64

*Filed herewith.